
MEETING: CABINET

DATE: Thursday 2nd September, 2021

TIME: 10.00 am

VENUE: The Ball Room, Bootle Town Hall

DECISION MAKER: CABINET

Councillor Ian Maher (Chair)
Councillor Atkinson
Councillor Cummins
Councillor Doyle
Councillor Fairclough
Councillor Hardy
Councillor Lappin
Councillor Roscoe
Councillor Moncur
Councillor Veidman

COMMITTEE OFFICER: Ruth Harrison
Democratic Services Manager

Telephone: 0151 934 2042
E-mail: ruth.harrison@sefton.gov.uk

The Cabinet is responsible for making what are known as Key Decisions, 
which will be notified on the Forward Plan.  Items marked with an * on the 
agenda involve Key Decisions
A key decision, as defined in the Council’s Constitution, is: -
● any Executive decision that is not in the Annual Revenue Budget and 

Capital Programme approved by the Council and which requires a gross 
budget expenditure, saving or virement of more than £100,000 or more 
than 2% of a Departmental budget, whichever is the greater

● any Executive decision where the outcome will have a significant impact 
on a significant number of people living or working in two or more Wards

See overleaf for COVID Guidance and the 
requirements in relation to Public Attendance.
If you have any special needs that may require arrangements to 
facilitate your attendance at this meeting, please contact the 
Committee Officer named above, who will endeavour to assist.

We endeavour to provide a reasonable number of full agendas, including reports at 
the meeting.  If you wish to ensure that you have a copy to refer to at the meeting, 
please can you print off your own copy of the agenda pack prior to the meeting.

Public Document Pack



COVID GUIDANCE IN RELATION TO PUBLIC ATTENDANCE

In light of ongoing Covid-19 social distancing restrictions, there is limited 

capacity for members of the press and public to be present in the meeting 

room indicated on the front page of the agenda at any one time.  We 

would ask parties remain in the meeting room solely for the duration of 

consideration of the Committee report(s)  to which their interests relate.

We therefore request that if you wish to attend the Committee to please 

register in advance of the meeting via email to 

ruth.harrison@sefton.gov.uk  by no later than 12:00 (noon) the day 
before the day of the meeting.
 

Please include in your email –

 Your name;

 Your email address;

 Your Contact telephone number; and

 The details of the report in which you are interested.

In light of current social distancing requirements, access to the meeting 

room is limited.

We have been advised by Public Health that Members, officers and 
the public should carry out a lateral flow test before attending the 
meeting, and only attend if that test is negative. Provided you are not 
classed as exempt, it is requested that you wear a mask that covers 
both your nose and mouth.

mailto:ruth.harrison@sefton.gov.uk


A G E N D A
Items marked with an * involve key decisions

Item 
No.

Subject/Author(s) Wards Affected

 
 1 Apologies for Absence

 2 Declarations of Interest
Members are requested at a meeting where a 
disclosable pecuniary interest or personal 
interest arises, which is not already included in 
their Register of Members' Interests, to declare 
any interests that relate to an item on the 
agenda.

Where a Member discloses a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest, he/she must withdraw from 
the meeting room, including from the public 
gallery, during the whole consideration of any 
item of business in which he/she has an 
interest, except where he/she is permitted to 
remain as a result of a grant of a dispensation.

Where a Member discloses a personal interest 
he/she must seek advice from the Monitoring 
Officer or staff member representing the 
Monitoring Officer to determine whether the 
Member should withdraw from the meeting 
room, including from the public gallery, during 
the whole consideration of any item of business 
in which he/she has an interest or whether the 
Member can remain in the meeting or remain in 
the meeting and vote on the relevant decision.

 3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 
16)

Minutes of the meeting held on 29 July 2021.

 4 Appointment to Liverpool University 
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust University 
Hospital Council of Governors

All Wards (Pages 17 - 
20)

Report of the Chief Legal and Democratic 
Officer.

* 5 Living Well Sefton Service Contract 
Extension

All Wards (Pages 21 - 
30)

Report of the Director of Public Health.



* 6 Procurement of Sefton Integrated Homeless 
Services

All Wards (Pages 31 - 
44)

Report of the Head of Economic Growth and 
Housing.

* 7 Children’s Social Care Workforce Review All Wards (Pages 45 - 
52)

Report of the Executive Director of Children’s 
Social Care and Education.

* 8 Financial Management 2021/22 to 2024/25 
and Framework for Change 2020 - Revenue 
and Capital Budget Update 2021/22 
including the Financial Impact of COVID-19 
on the 2021/22 Budget - September Update

All Wards (Pages 53 - 
68)

Report of the Executive Director of Corporate 
Resources and Customer Services.



THE “CALL IN” PERIOD FOR THIS SET OF MINUTES ENDS AT 12 NOON ON 
WEDNESDAY 11 AUGUST, 2021.

31

CABINET

MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, BOOTLE
ON THURSDAY 29TH JULY, 2021

PRESENT: Councillor Ian Maher (in the Chair)
Councillors Atkinson, Cummins, Doyle, Fairclough, 
Hardy, Lappin, Roscoe and Moncur

ALSO PRESENT: Councillor Sir Ron Watson

27. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Veidman. 

28. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of any disclosable pecuniary interests or personal 
interests were received.

29. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

Decision Made:

That the Minutes of the Meeting held on 24 June 2021 be approved as a 
correct record.

30. CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE & FAMILIES PUBLIC HEALTH 
COMMISSIONED SERVICES 

The Cabinet considered the report of the Head of Health and Wellbeing in 
relation to Children, Young People and Families Public Health 
Commissioned Services.  The report detailed the reasons for the proposal 
to extend the existing contracts for a further 1-year period for both the 
Sefton’s Integrated 0-19 Healthy Child Programme Service and for also 
the Sefton’s Young People and Family Substance Use Service – We are 
With You. 

Decision Made: That:

(1) the authorisation of an out of contract 1-year extension to the 
existing 0-19 Integrated Healthy Child Programme contract and 
Young People and Family Substance Use Service contract both of 
which are due to expire on 31st March 2022, be approved; and 

(2) the authorisation of a novation of the 0-19 Integrated Healthy Child 
Programme contract to the Mersey Care Foundation Trust, be 
approved.

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



CABINET- THURSDAY 29TH JULY, 2021

32

Reasons for the Decisions:

Services have been working in business continuity for the last 14 months, 
adapting and responding to the requirements and restrictions associated 
with COVID-19 guidance. Currently, the services are going through a 
period of recovery and restoration which needs to be fully exercised to 
ensure stability in service delivery.

The impacts of COVID-19 on children, young people and families are 
significant and long lasting. Themes are emerging, which include a decline 
in emotional health and wellbeing, widening inequalities and increased 
demand on specialist services. As children return to school and services 
resume face to face delivery, issues hidden during restrictive periods are 
presenting. Time to fully assess the changing needs of children, young 
people and families is required to enable the design of future services that 
are responsive to those needs.

There is provision for this allocation via a contract variation under 
Regulation 72 of the Public Contract Regulations which states:

“Contracts and framework agreements may be modified without a new 
procurement procedure in accordance with this Part in any of the following 
cases:

c) where all the following conditions are fulfilled: -

(i) the need for modification has been brought about by circumstances 
which a diligent contracting authority could not have foreseen;
(ii) the modification does not alter the overall nature of the contract;
(iii) any increase in price does not exceed 50% of the value of the original 
contract or framework agreement.

In this instance: 

(i) the need for modification has been brought about by the Impact of 
COVID-19 as described within this report and could not have been 
foreseen. 
(ii) the request to extend the contract does not alter the existing conditions 
within the contracts  
(iii) any increase in price will not exceed 50% of the value of the original 
contract or framework agreement.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 

To re-tender the services. This is not the preferred option due to the 
services working in business continuity during COVID-19 restrictive 
periods and the potentially destabilising effect on the wider system. The 
preferred option is for the services to have time to go through a period of 
restoration and for the emerging impacts of COVID-19 on children, young 
people and families to be fully realised and reviewed to inform future 
service redesign. 

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



CABINET- THURSDAY 29TH JULY, 2021

33

31. EMOTIONAL HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY 

The Cabinet considered the report of the Executive Director of Children’s 
Social Care and Education in relation to the Sefton Children and Young 
People’s Emotional Wellbeing Strategy 2021-2026.  The report highlighted 
that the Sefton Children and Young People’s Emotional Wellbeing 
Strategy 2021-2026 would link closely to the Sefton Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy and would also work alongside the Children and Young People’s 
Plan 2020/25.

The report referred to the partnership approach in the development of the 
strategy ensuring that the strategy provided the overarching framework, 
key issue points, and clear direction to improve the emotional health and 
wellbeing of children and young people in Sefton.

The report also highlighted the need to adapt and refresh the strategy as 
and when required.  

The Cabinet Member for Children’s Social Care, Councillor Doyle reported 
that the Strategy was a well presented and concise document and 
commended it to the Cabinet for approval.

Decision Made: That the adoption of the Children and Young People’s 
Emotional Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Sefton be approved.

Reasons for the Decision:

The Strategy has received oversight from the Health and Wellbeing Board 
and Overview and Scrutiny before submission to Cabinet.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 

None. 

32. CAPITAL FUNDING FOR SHORT-TERM ASSESSMENT UNIT 

The Cabinet considered the report of the Executive Director of Adult Social 
Care and Health in relation to the capital funding for a short-term 
assessment unit.

The report detailed that Riverside Housing, who intended to purchase the site,  
had proposed a redevelopment scheme consisting of 32 houses, 2 bungalows, 
6 maisonettes and a 3-storey 90-unit extra care scheme.

The Council have requested that as part of the development a purpose-built 
short-term assessment unit for Sefton residents, be built to meet the Council’s 
needs which will be leased back on a long-term arrangement at a peppercorn 
rent for the Councils use. 

Decision Made: That:

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



CABINET- THURSDAY 29TH JULY, 2021

34

(1) the Cabinet agreed and referred the request to the Council to 
approve the supplementary capital estimate of £2.58m for inclusion 
in the capital programme (subject to a satisfactory lease 
agreement with Riverside). The Council has an Adult Social Care 
Capital budget made up of Disabled Facility Grant underspend 
held in the Better Care Fund. This development is within the 
conditions of the DFG grant. This proposal when completed will 
satisfy all conditions on the use of DFG funds;

(2) the Executive Director of Corporate Resources and Customer 
Services in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Regulatory, 
Compliance and Corporate Services be granted delegated 
authority to agree a long-term lease for the short-term assessment 
unit between Riverside and the Council, be approved;

(3) the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Health be 
authorised to undertake an open procurement exercise to procure 
the care and support provider who will meet the assessed care and 
support needs of those individuals who will reside within the new 
service, be approved;

(4) the Executive Director of Social Care and Health in consultation 
with the Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care be granted 
delegated authority to make decisions with regards to the 
procurement process for the care and support service, service 
specification, contract duration, consultation approach and tender 
evaluation criteria, be approved;

(5) the Executive Director of Social Care and Health in consultation 
with the Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care be granted 
delegated authority to award the contract and any permitted 
extensions thereof, beyond the initial contract period, be approved; 
and

(6) it be noted that officers will report back to Cabinet seeking 
approval to the terms of the land sale to Riverside Housing once 
the negotiations and external valuation purchase price has been 
confirmed. This will take account of deductions for demolition and 
abnormal foundation works, and the completion of independent 
valuation to satisfy best value considerations.

Reasons for the Decisions:

(1) The new service model reflects both local and national priorities to 
commission joined up health and social care services at place, that 
prevent hospital admission and support timely discharge from an 
acute setting, whilst improving outcomes for individuals accessing 
the service. 

(2) At present there are multiple commissioning arrangements in place, 
both in borough and out of borough, for some of the most complex 

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



CABINET- THURSDAY 29TH JULY, 2021

35

individuals and the proposed new service model will enable us to 
commission a service that is focussed upon improving outcomes for 
individuals, whilst enabling the Council to achieve efficiencies 
through more cost-effective commissioning arrangements at place. 

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 

1. Do nothing – Continue to utilise current provision and out of 
borough placements which do not meet our needs and are 
financially unsustainable. 

2. Redevelop existing building-based provision – this has been 
explored and discounted as an option and refurbishment and 
redevelopment of a number of existing respite facilities would be at 
a higher cost and the technology and space standards could not be 
integrated due to age of buildings. In addition, there would be a 
need to identify alternative services/placements whilst this 
happened for an extended period. 

3. Design and build solely by the council would have an additional 
capital impact of £0.75m. By pursuing a partnership approach, we 
will be benefiting from the economies and capacity to deliver the 
scheme as part of the wider development.

33. PROCUREMENT OF ADVOCACY PROVISION 

The Cabinet considered the report of the Executive Director of Adult Social 
Care and Health in relation to the procurement of an integrated Sefton 
advocacy hub with a lead provider that will provide a single point of access 
to service users and referrers but still provide essential specialist provision 
to people who feel excluded from mainstream services.

Decision Made: That: 

(1) the Executive Director of Social Care and Health be authorised to 
conduct a Light Touch regime open procurement exercise for an 
Integrated Sefton Advocacy Hub with an initial contract term of three 
years that will incorporate both statutory and non-statutory 
advocacy provision to commence from the 1st January 2022, with 
the option to further extend for a period of up to two years (either as 
a single extension or via two separate twelve-month extensions) 
subject to satisfactory performance of the successful supplier and 
the required budget being available, be approved:

(2) the Executive Director of Social Care and Health in consultation with 
the Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care be granted delegated 
authority to make decisions  with regards to the procurement 
process, service specification and tender evaluation criteria, be 
approved;

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



CABINET- THURSDAY 29TH JULY, 2021

36

(3) the Executive Director of Social Care and Health in consultation with 
the Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care be granted delegated 
authority to award the contract and any permitted extensions 
thereof, beyond the initial three-year contract period, be approved; 
and

(4) the Executive Director of Social Care and Health in consultation with 
the Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care be granted delegated 
authority to increase the contract value if necessary following 
successful award, due to the unknown impact of the implementation 
of the Liberty Protection Safeguards, be approved.

Reasons for the Decisions:

This new service model reflects the key priorities identified within the 
Integrated Commissioning Work Plan, which is to commission joined up 
Social Care and Health services with streamlined pathways that improve 
the service user / patient journey by providing efficient and effective 
service provision at place.

The commissioning of an Integrated Sefton Advocacy Hub also meets the 
requirements of the Care Act 2014, which states that individuals accessing 
advocacy services should have consistency with the advocate supporting 
them through their journey. It states that if an individual’s needs change 
the advocate should be skilled to continue to support the person and not 
be signposted to another service where they are not known.

The new service model will underpin Sefton’s Advocacy Strategy for the 
next 3-5 years and reflects the aims and vision of the Council’s New 
Realities Agreement which outlines our commitment to working in 
partnership with the Voluntary, Community and Faith sector.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 

To do nothing in terms of maintaining the current service delivery 
arrangements has been considered, but on the basis of being able to 
develop services further and achieve greater system wide efficiencies, as 
well as improved experiences for users of advocacy services this option is 
not recommended.

There are potential TUPE implications that will need to be handled 
sensitively and adherence to a strict procurement timeline will be required 
to ensure a sufficient period is available for staff consultation to take place.

Financial analysis and modelling has taken place based upon the 
information about the changing legislation that is currently known.  
However, the risk cannot be entirely eliminated, in the absence of the 
statutory practice guidance that is yet to be published. 

Page 10

Agenda Item 3



CABINET- THURSDAY 29TH JULY, 2021

37

34. MARINE LAKE EVENTS CENTRE – PRE-DEVELOPMENT AND 
CAPITAL FUNDING BID SUBMISSIONS 

The Cabinet considered the report of the Executive Director of Place in 
relation to the submission of a pre-development funding bid of up to £2.5m 
to the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority (LCR CA), along with a 
capital funding bid submission to Arts Council England (ACE) of up to 
£5m. 

The report also detailed the proposal to procure a range of required 
consultancy services for the proposed new Southport Marine Lake Events 
Centre, in order to progress the design, business case and operating 
model, to enable the required Town Deal submission by March 2022 to 
draw down the necessary funds. 

The Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Skills, Councillor Atkinson 
referred to the hard work of officers and key partners in seeking and 
securing funds to assist with the delivery of the Marine Lake Events 
Centre.  Councillor Atkinson thanked officers, members of the Southport 
Town Deal Board and Liverpool City Region Combined Authority for their 
continued support and hard work.  

Councillor Atkinson also referred to the fantastic opening of Southport 
Market that had taken place on Thursday 22 July 2021 and congratulated 
the Tourism team and partners for all their hard work and commitment.    

Decisions Made: That:

(1) the submission of a pre development funding bid of up to £2.5m to 
the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority, be approved; 

(2) the submission of a Cultural Development Fund bid to Arts Council 
England of up to £5m, be approved;

(3) subject to the funding bid, the tender processes to procure a range 
of consultancy services, using several different compliant 
procurement methods as detailed in the report, be approved; 

(4) the Executive Director of Place, in consultation with Cabinet 
Member for Regeneration be granted delegated authority to award 
the necessary contracts, be approved;

(5) it be noted that the proposal was a Key Decision but had not been 
included in the Council's Forward Plan of Key 
Decisions. Consequently, the Leader of the Council and the Chair of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Regeneration and Skills) 
had been consulted under Rule 27 of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules of the Constitution, to the decision being made by 
Cabinet as a matter of urgency on the basis that it was 
impracticable to defer the decision until the commencement of the 

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



CABINET- THURSDAY 29TH JULY, 2021

38

next Forward Plan because of the opportunity for early release of 
pre-development funding; and

(6) it be noted that the Leader of the Council and the Chair of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Regeneration and Skills) had 
given his consent under Rule 46 of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules for this decision to be treated as urgent and not 
subject to "call in" on the basis that it cannot be reasonably deferred 
because of the opportunity for early release of pre-development 
funding.

Reasons for the Decisions:

Cabinet have previously approved to progress with a new Events Centre in 
Southport as part of the successful Southport Town Deal. To enable 
progression of the project at pace, there is now opportunity to secure up to 
£2.5m from the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority as a 
contribution to the pre-development works. Moreover, Arts Council 
England has recently announced a Capital funding scheme, with the 
proposed Marine Lake Events Centre being eligible.
 
Furthermore, in order to complete the final business case, several 
procurements are required such as the delivery team and full design 
services. This will allow the project to progress on the necessary timetable 
to drawdown Town Deal funding in March 2022, and to submit the final 
business case to the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority as part of 
the capital contribution of up to £20m.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 

Two procurement timetable options have been considered and rejected;

1. Finalise the delivery strategy and present the procurement options to 
September Cabinet therefore given time to be on the forward plan. This 
option has been rejected due to the notification of pre development 
funding being available from the Liverpool City Region Combined 
Authority.

2. Given the programme pressure and requirement to submit a planning 
application by February / March 2022, an approach to procure the core 
design team via the direct award route has been considered. This would 
allow the commencement of design development as early as possible, and 
therefore maximise the period for design development and cost certainty 
at the point of submitting the planning application.

However, the direct award route is deemed to be unsuitable due to the 
value of the works. The next preferred option is to procure the core design 
team via a mini-competition, resulting in a circa 2-month programme delay.

Page 12

Agenda Item 3



CABINET- THURSDAY 29TH JULY, 2021

39

35. FINANCIAL AND CORPORATE PERFORMANCE 2020/2021 

The Cabinet considered the report of the Executive Director - Corporate 
Resources and Customer Services advising of the revenue and capital 
outturn position in relation to the 2020/21 financial year; and that in doing 
so the report outlined any key variations and where appropriate any impact 
on future years’ financial performance.  In addition, the report provided 
details of the Council’s Corporate Performance for 2020/21.

A copy of the Council’s Corporate Performance Report for 2020/21 was 
attached as an appendix to the report.

Decisions Made: That:

(A) In respect of the Revenue Outturn:

(1) the General Fund net surplus of £4.234m for 2020/21 that will 
increase the Council’s General Balances by £2.734m more 
than was budgeted for, be noted;

(2) the increase in Schools’ balances of £4.853m for 2020/21 and 
the net reduction of non-schools centrally retained DSG 
balances of £2.230m, be noted;

(3) the changes to Earmarked Reserves in 2020/21, be noted;

(4) the creation of the five Earmarked Reserves detailed in 
paragraph 6.4(g) from various underspends that have 
occurred during 2020/21, be approved;

(B) In respect of the Capital Outturn

(1) the total capital outturn of £23.728m for the financial year 
2020/21, be noted;

(2) the successful delivery of a number of schemes as set out in 
section 11 that have supported the delivery of the Council’s 
core purpose, be noted;

(C) The Council’s Corporate Performance Report for 2020/21, be noted.

Reasons for the Decisions:

The production of a revenue and capital outturn report is a key feature of 
effective financial management and will allow Members to make informed 
decisions that will support service delivery and medium-term financial 
sustainability.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 

None.
Page 13

Agenda Item 3



CABINET- THURSDAY 29TH JULY, 2021

40

36. TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN 2020/21 

The Cabinet considered the report of the Executive Director - Corporate 
Resources and Customer Services that provided a review of the Treasury 
Management activities undertaken to 31 March 2021; that advised that the 
outturn report allowed monitoring against the Treasury Management Policy 
and Strategy and Prudential Indicators approved by Cabinet and Council 
in February 2020; and which also provided information to the Audit and 
Governance Committee, whose role it was to carry out scrutiny of treasury 
management policies and practices.

Decision Made:

That the Treasury Management position to 31st March 2021 and the 
update to 31st May 2021; the review of the effects of decisions taken in 
pursuit of the Treasury Management Strategy; the implications of changes 
resulting from regulatory, economic and market factors affecting the 
Council’s treasury management activities, be noted.

Reasons for Decision:

To ensure that Members are fully apprised of the treasury activity 
undertaken to 31st March 2021 and to 31st May 2021 in order to meet the 
reporting requirements set out in Sefton’s Treasury Management Practices 
and those recommended by the CIPFA code.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:

None.

37. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 2021/22 TO 2024/25 AND 
FRAMEWORK FOR CHANGE 2020 - REVENUE AND CAPITAL 
BUDGET UPDATE 2021/22 INCLUDING THE FINANCIAL 
IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON THE 2021/22 BUDGET - JULY 
UPDATE 

The Cabinet considered the report of the Executive Director for Corporate 
Resources and Customer Services and were advised of:

(1)   the current estimated financial impact of COVID-19 on the 2021/22 
Budget;

(2) the current position relating to the 2021/22 revenue budget; 

(3)   the current forecast on Council Tax and Business Rates collection 
for 2021/22; and

(4)   the monitoring position of the Council’s capital programme to the 
end of June 2021 in relation to:

 the forecast expenditure to year end;

Page 14

Agenda Item 3



CABINET- THURSDAY 29TH JULY, 2021

41

 variations against the approved budgets and an explanation 
of those variations; and

 updates to spending profiles and proposed amendments to 
capital budgets necessary to ensure the efficient delivery of 
capital projects.

The Cabinet Member for Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services, 
Councillor Lappin thanked the Executive Director and his team for all their 
hard work and extended her appreciation to all teams across the Council 
for their continued support in the management of the Councils resources.

Decisions Made: That:

(A) in respect of the Revenue Budget:

(1) the current estimated impact of COVID-19 on the 2021/22 
Budget together with the key issues that will influence the 
final position, be noted;

(2) the various Government grants that have been received to 
support residents and businesses which will be utilised in 
accordance with central government guidance, be noted;

(3) that the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Health in 
consultation with the Cabinet Members for Adult Social Care 
and Health and Wellbeing be granted delegated authority to 
make decisions on the use of the discretionary elements of 
the Adult Social Care Infection Control and Testing Fund, be 
approved;

(4) the Executive Director – People in consultation with the 
Cabinet Members for Communities and Housing be granted 
delegated authority to make decisions in relation to the use of 
the Local Support Grant, be approved;

(5) the current position relating to the 2021/22 revenue budget, 
be noted;

(6) the financial risks associated with the delivery of the 2021/22 
revenue budget be recognised and acknowledged that the 
forecast outturn position will continue to be reviewed to 
ensure a balanced forecast outturn position and financial 
sustainability can be achieved;

(B)   that in respect of Grant Funding, the offer of £969,724 Adult 
Education Budget funding available to Sefton Council, which is 
ring-fenced for the delivery of adult community learning provision 
for residents aged over 19, be noted and accepted; and

(C)   that in respect of the Capital Programme:
Page 15

Agenda Item 3



CABINET- THURSDAY 29TH JULY, 2021

42

(1) the spending profiles across financial years for the approved 
capital programme, as detailed in paragraph 7.1 of the report, 
be noted;

(2) the revised Transport Allocations for Key Route Network 
maintenance (£0.471m) and the Pipeline Development Fund 
(£0.368m) as detailed in paragraph 7.7 of the report, be 
approved;

(3) the Council be recommended to approve the revised 
Highways Maintenance allocation of £3.100m as detailed in 
paragraph 7.7 of the report, be agreed;

(4) the supplementary capital estimate of £0.195m for the 
Regional Coastal Monitoring programme as detailed in 
paragraph 7.10 of the report, be approved.

(5) the latest capital expenditure position as at 30 June 2021 of 
£6.491m as detailed in paragraph 7.11 of the report and the 
latest full year forecast of £45.203m as detailed in paragraph 
7.12 of the report, be noted;

(6) the explanations of variances to project budgets as detailed 
in paragraph 7.15 of the report, be noted; and

(7) it be noted that capital resources will be managed by the 
Executive Director Corporate Resources and Customer 
Services to ensure the capital programme remains fully 
funded and that capital funding arrangements secure the 
maximum financial benefit to the Council as detailed in 
paragraph 7.18 of the report.

Reasons for the Decisions:

To ensure Cabinet are informed of the current position in relation to the 
2021/22 revenue budget, including COVID19 pressures and additional 
funding being made available to the Council.   

To provide an updated forecast of the outturn position with regard to the 
collection of Council Tax and Business Rates.  

To keep members informed of the progress of the Capital Programme 
against the profiled budget for 2019/20 and agreed allocations for future 
years. 

To progress any changes that are required in order to maintain a relevant 
and accurate budget profile necessary for effective monitoring of the 
Capital Programme.

To approve any updates to funding resources so that they can be applied 
to capital schemes in the delivery of the Council’s overall capital strategy.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: None

Page 16

Agenda Item 3



Report to: Cabinet Date of Meeting: 2 September 2021

Subject: Appointment to Liverpool University Hospital NHS Foundation 
Trust University Hospital Council of Governors 

Report of: Chief Legal and 
Democratic Officer

Wards Affected: (All Wards);

Portfolio: Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services

Is this a Key 
Decision:

No Included in 
Forward Plan:

 No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

The report seeks to appoint an elected Member as a Governor of the Liverpool University 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust University Hospital Council following the resignation of 
Councillor J. J. Kelly from that position.

Recommendation:    

That Councillor Steve McGinnity be appointed as the Sefton Council representative to 
the Liverpool University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust University Hospital Council of 
Governors, with immediate effect, until 24 June 2024.

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

The Cabinet has delegated powers set out in Chapter 5, Paragraph 40 of the 
Constitution to appoint the Council’s representatives to serve on Outside Bodies. 

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 

None 

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs

           None arising from this report. 

(B) Capital Costs

None 

Implications:

Page 17

Agenda Item 4



The following implications of this proposal have been considered and where there are 
specific implications, these are set out below:

Financial

Legal 
Paragraph 40 of Chapter 5 in the Constitution gives the Cabinet delegated powers to 
make appointments to Outside Bodies, appropriate.

Human Resources

Equality
1. No Equality Implication

2. Equality Implications identified and mitigated

3. Equality Implication identified and risk remains

Climate Emergency Implications:

The recommendations within this report will 
Have a positive impact N/A
Have a neutral impact N/A
Have a negative impact N/A
The Author has undertaken the Climate Emergency training for 
report authors

Yes

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable: The appointment of Council representative will ensure that 
the interests of residents of Sefton are taken into account.

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: As above

Commission, broker and provide core services:  As above

Place – leadership and influencer:  As above

Drivers of change and reform:  As above

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity:  As above

Greater income for social investment:  As above

Cleaner Greener: As above

Impact of the Proposals on Service Delivery:



Page 18

Agenda Item 4



The appointment of Council representative will ensure that the interests of residents of 
Sefton are taken into account

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

The Executive Director of Corporate Resources and Customer Services (FD:6488/21) 
has been consulted and notes the report indicates no new direct financial implications for 
the Council.

The Chief Legal and Democratic Officer (LD:4689/21) has been consulted and 
comments have been incorporated into the report

Implementation Date for the Decision

Following the expiry of the “call-in” period for the Minutes of the Cabinet Meeting

Contact Officer: Ruth Harrison
Tel: 0151 934 2042
Email: ruth.harrison@sefton.gov.uk

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection

1. Introduction/Background

1.1 The Cabinet has delegated powers set out in Chapter 5, Paragraph 40 of the 
Constitution to appoint the Council’s representatives to serve on Outside Bodies.  

1.2 At its meeting held on 24 June 2021 Cabinet approved the appointment of 
Councillor J. J. Kelly to serve as a Governor on the Liverpool University Hospitals 
NHS Foundation Trust University Hospital Council of Governors. The term of 
office of the appointment was for the period 24 June 2021 to 24 June 2024.  

1.3 Councillor J. J. Kelly having been appointed to serve on the Council’s Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee (Adult Social Care & Health) is not eligible to serve as a 
Governor on the Liverpool University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust University 
Hospital Council of Governors. Accordingly, there is now a Governor vacancy that 
Sefton Council is entitled to fill.

1.4 Representations have been received from the Labour Group that Councillor Steve 
McGinnity be appointed to fill this vacancy; and Cabinet is recommended to 
approve this request.

Page 19

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Cabinet Date of Meeting: 2 September 2021

Subject: Living Well Sefton Service Contract Extension

Report of: Director of Public 
Health

Wards Affected: (All Wards);

Portfolio: Cabinet Member - Health and Wellbeing

Is this a Key 
Decision:

Yes Included in 
Forward Plan:

Yes 

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

In April 2018 the Living Well Sefton Service (LWS) was awarded a contract to provide 
community-based health and wellbeing services to people living in the most deprived 
areas of Sefton. The contract was awarded for 3 years with an option to extend for a 
further 2 years.  The current contract has a period of April 2018 to March 2022 plus an 
option of 2 further years. 

In compliance with the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules and dictated by the value 
associated with the proposed optional 2 years, approval will be required from Cabinet to 
approve the award for the optional 2-year contract period and retain the contracted 
service until March 2024, as is outlined in the current contract. 

Consideration is now required on exercising continuation options as the initial 3-year 
award within the main contract is due to expire on 31st March 2022. 

Recommendation(s):

(1) Cabinet to grant authority to exercise the option to extend the current contract for a 
period of two years from 1stApril 2022 to 31st March 2024.

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

The current contract is from 1st April 2018 to 31st March 2022, with the option to extend 
for a further 2 years.  Approval is sought by Cabinet to extend the current commission 
of the LWS Service by an additional two years to March 2024.  

This option would provide the following;

 a longer period of service stability and continuity 
 essential pandemic support
 recovery support 
 enhanced focus on health improvement issues such as obesity, mental health and 

lifestyle behaviours which have been negatively impacted during the pandemic
 opportunity to enhance the partnership and whole system approach   

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



 opportunity to develop integrated pathways such as the obesity pathway through 
the Integrated Care System (ICS) whilst maintaining  local early intervention and 
prevention and maintenance of healthy weight. This would enable robust clinical 
and non-clinical pathway development through the ICS  

 reduced costs to the Council from engaging in a procurement exercise

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

The available options are:

i) Exercise one-year extension / continuation option. This option would provide a 
degree of continuity and stability. However, any continuity / stability derived from 
exercising this option would be limited to twelve months at which point the 
Council would still need to consider exercising the second extension / 
continuation option or re-tender the service.

ii) Conducting a full procurement exercise would not bring about any significant 
benefits for Sefton Council or for users for the LWS service. 

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs

The annual contract value is £940,000 and is funded from within the service’s budget 
for which sufficient provision exists.  The additional 2 years will similarly be contained 
within this budget and includes pandemic support and recovery response. 

The contract will include provision for variation and early termination by the Council for 
convenience in the event of further reduction in funding and the requirement for the 
Council to achieve an overall balanced budget.

(B) Capital Costs

There are no capital costs for the Council associated with this Service.

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):
The proposals aim to offer maximum value for money while ensuring stability in the 
LWS. The cost of the service will be met within the existing Public Health budget 
allocation.

Legal Implications:
No change - within existing contract terms

Equality Implications:
There are no equality implications. 

Page 22

Agenda Item 5



Climate Emergency Implications:

The recommendations within this report will 
Have a positive impact N
Have a neutral impact Y
Have a negative impact N
The Author has undertaken the Climate Emergency training for 
report authors

N

The proposal to extend the contracts of the services in scope for a further 24 months 
will have a neutral impact on the climate emergency. It is a core service and the 
extension does not lead to any new resources with would impact the climate emergency 
– for example, there are no additional buildings to be used. 
The service focuses on improving the health and wellbeing of people living in the most 
deprived areas in Sefton  which will have overlaps to the environmental agenda – 
around active travel which will encourage people to walk and cycle and exercise 
outdoors. 

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable:
The LWS is based on a model of ‘progressive universalism’. The pandemic has created 
a wider need for support in areas beyond the initially defined  most deprived wards 
which the service was originally designed to support. Local people will receive support 
however, services will remain targeted to those who need them or are identified as 
being at risk.
Facilitate confident and resilient communities:
The LWS is rooted in the community and is a partnership between Sefton CVS, May 
Logan Centre, Netherton Feelgood Factory, Brighter Living Partnership, Citizens Advice 
Sefton, Sefton Carers’ Centre, Smoke Free Sefton and Active Lifestyles, in addition to 
20+ Living Well Sefton Neighbourhood Partners.

The service has remained responsive and flexible to the needs of our communities 
since the pandemic started in the early spring of 2020 and the service will remain 
focused on rebuilding and supporting individuals to adapt to this transitional stage as we 
move through the next 2 years. 

The service works with local people and partners to transform and integrate community 
support services, provide resilience grants and improve quality health and well-being 
outcomes.  The focus remains on improving community support, signposting, access 
and improved user experience and helping to lead to improved outcomes for people 
living in areas of highest inequality. 

Commission, broker and provide core services:

Place – leadership and influencer:
Not applicable
Drivers of change and reform:
Opportunity to develop integrated pathways such as the obesity pathway through the 
Integrated Care System (ICS) whilst maintaining local early intervention support. This 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



would enable robust clinical and non-clinical pathway development through an ICS  
Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity:
Not applicable
Greater income for social investment: 
Not applicable
Cleaner Greener
Opportunity to develop wider opportunities for active travel

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Executive Director of Corporate Resources and Customer Services (FD.6476/21) 
and the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer (LD.4577/21) have been consulted and any 
comments have been incorporated into the report.

(B) External Consultations 

Not applicable 
Implementation Date for the Decision

Following the expiry of the “call-in” period for the Minutes of the Cabinet Meeting

Contact Officer: Anna Nygaard, Julie Murray
Telephone Number: Tel: 0151 934 3343,
Email Address: Anna.Nygaard@sefton.gov.uk, Julie.Murray@sefton.gov.uk 

Appendices:

There are no appendices to this report

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

Page 24

Agenda Item 5

mailto:Anna.Nygaard@sefton.gov.uk
mailto:Julie.Murray@sefton.gov.uk


1. Introduction/Background

1.1 Sefton CVS hosts and coordinates the Living Well Sefton Programme, funded 
through Public Health, to contribute towards the reduction of health inequalities 
experienced by vulnerable groups and those living in our most deprived 
communities in Sefton. The service works in partnership with voluntary, community, 
faith partners and statutory organisations to enable improved access to services, 
information and advice for the community.

1.2 The LWS service is a partnership between Sefton CVS, May Logan Centre, 
Netherton Feelgood Factory, Brighter Living Partnership, Citizens Advice Sefton, 
Sefton Carers’ Centre, Smoke Free Sefton and Active Lifestyles, in addition to 20+ 
Living Well Sefton Neighbourhood Partners.

1.3   Over the last 3 years, the LWS has developed a strong brand and continues to raise 
and increase awareness across partners. LWS has an established team structure 
including a Programme Manager, Deputy Programme Manager, Data and 
Intelligence Officer and Data Quality Officer. There are three Community 
Connectors in post covering North, Central and South Sefton who work with eleven 
Social Prescribing Link Workers, funded by the CCG.

1.4    LWS aims and objectives 
 Deliver high quality, cost effective and responsive service to support health 

improvement across the borough
 Provide capacity building activity to a range of partners 
 Improve access to Living Well Sefton support via health & social care 
 Provide targeted, flexible and person-centred support 
 Support people in our most deprived communities to live longer, healthier 

lives contributing to an increase in healthy life expectancy 
 Develop alternative and innovative practice, to engage with vulnerable 

groups
 Support individuals and communities to become more resilient
 Improve health education through delivery, training & events
 Support the development of peer and community led approaches 
 Develop innovative partnerships with community stakeholders 
 Increase training and support to build capacity across the workforce

2. Key service developments

Geographically focused delivery

2.1 At the initial stage of the pandemic in March 2020, Public Health worked with the 
Sefton Communities Cell and LWS to define how the LWS would be fit for purpose 
to respond to the acute phase of the pandemic. Public Health initiated a contract 
variation to ensure that the LWS could be immediately responsive to community 
need which included setting up shopping services to reach shielding residents, 
mobilising volunteers to deliver telephone befriending, responding to changing and 
emerging community need through signposting/shielding clients from Council lists 
to adapting the support available to existing LWS clients. Telephone befriending 

Page 25

Agenda Item 5



became crucial and was often the only way to ensure vulnerable clients had 
support. 

2.2 The COVID Wellness check was used widely by LWS Mentors, Social Prescribers, 
Community Connectors and volunteers to evaluate a client’s wellbeing and practical 
needs to ensure they could stay safe and well. Community Connectors and Social 
Prescribing Link Workers (SPLWs) were supporting clients by telephone and a 
shopping service was set up in Maghull by the Community Connector. The 
partnership working between LWS teams and the wider health teams within CVS, in 
responding to signposting and shielded referrals from the Council, ensured a joined 
up, responsive service quickly met the needs of the communities. 

2.3 As LWS led on the community response for Shielding or Clinically Extremely 
Vulnerable (CEV) residents, since Friday 3rd April 2020, 1,238 shielded residents 
or CEV residents have been provided with support, including 626 supported with 
shopping. This offer has also been extended, with informal online peer support 
groups for Clinically Extremely Vulnerable residents in North, Central and South 
Sefton led by each Community Connector.

2.4 Since ‘going live’ in March 2020, 1,833 signposting referral requests for help and 
support have been received for a wide range of services such as food shopping, 
picking up medications and social contact. Since the 1st April, 1,708 residents have 
been supported with shopping and 1,098 with prescriptions. LWS contributed to this 
response throughout. The prescription service has received 270 referrals, with 146 
pickup and deliveries completed. 

2.5 Partners continued with COVID response work, including overseeing volunteer led 
shopping services, befriending services and welfare checks. In addition to the 
clients recorded on the IWS system, a weekly average of 384 clients received 
support in these practical areas from our key delivery partners (May Logan, 
Feelgood Factory, Brighter Living Partnership and Sefton Carers’ Centre) with a 
high of 507 clients per week in early July. Many of these clients were not previously 
known to the service and ongoing support was put in place when required, through 
the LWS partners and internal teams.

3. Additional achievements and successes 

3.1 The Community Connectors and Social Prescribing Link Workers through Living 
Well Sefton have successfully developed and been pivotal to supporting residents 
of Sefton. They have established partnerships with Adult Social Care to assist 
Social Workers in supporting clients, providing advice, guidance, carrying out joint 
visits and taking referrals. Social Prescribers support Sefton GPs and the average 
weekly caseload per Link Workers is 9 clients. All GPs refer through EMIS 
managed referrals. 

 3.2 Delivery of general training for core partners and neighbourhood partners:
 Domestic Violence Awareness, Bereavement Support, Carers Awareness
 Smoking Brief Intervention Training, RSPH Level 2 Physical Activity   
 Suicide Awareness and Case notes best practice
 1451 people trained in Making Every Contact Count (MECC) which 

includes 55 people virtually and was adapted to support COVID specific 

Page 26

Agenda Item 5



health behaviour change through healthy chats. The focus is on identifying, 
understanding and responding to health behaviours that may have 
changed/deteriorated, including poor mental wellbeing, loss of physical 
strength and mobility, weight gain and increased alcohol consumption 

 2 cohorts of Train the Trainer (level 3) have resulted in 12 staff and 
partners trained to deliver MECC level 1. The aim will be to target GP 
surgery staff when COVID restrictions permit. 

 A survey monkey evaluation poll found 100% of attendees felt more 
confident having healthy chats with clients on the telephone specifically 
addressing health concerns.

 Understanding Health Promotion (accredited) training to partners.
 Bereavement Support was identified as a gap for those working on the 

frontline. LWS has purchased bereavement services through additional 
funding to support individual clients. 

 Strengths Based Approach and Solution Focused training has also been 
provided by Lancashire and South Cumbria NHS Foundation Trust 
including facilitated peer support sessions. 

 Living Well Sefton has taken part in several social media campaigns to 
promote job and grant opportunities regularly. 

 Programmes through the partners include ‘Weigh Forward’ with a focus 
around weight management and this links well to the ‘MOVE IT’ campaign. 

Community Resilience Grant

More than 105 groups working in their local communities have been funded through 
this grant with a total of around £186,376 awarded. Each round has had a theme, 
and during the pandemic, themes relating to reducing social isolation, improving 
mental wellbeing or being active outdoors have been promoted. 

Grants have supported community gardens, providing art and craft workshops, 
offering cooking classes to improve healthy eating and supporting people with 
hearing impairments to learn various ways of communicating.

A key component of the grant agreement is that the organisation agrees to receive 
MECC training which will benefit their community and utilise specialist support 
services as and when required. There is also an individual component to this grant 
which encourages individuals to apply for a £500 grant with an idea they have for 
improving their local area. They are supported by a partner of Living Well Sefton to 
deliver their project. So far 40 individuals have been successful and a total of 
£20,000 has been awarded.

3.3 Workplace Wellbeing Grants
These £500 grants are open to small to medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) in Sefton 
that have fewer than 250 employees (60% of which must be Sefton residents) and 
priority is given to those businesses which employ routine and manual workers.

There have been more than 55 applications to this fund and £27,500 has been 
awarded to workplaces to help their staff wellbeing.

Funding covers sessional work such as yoga; volunteer costs; equipment such as 
bike racks to encourage active travel to work; training courses with a wellbeing 

Page 27

Agenda Item 5



focus and events to support the wellbeing of staff. It can also be used to refurbish 
facilities which contribute to the health and wellbeing of staff, for example 
decorating a break room or buying a table and chairs to encourage people to eat 
lunch away from their desks.

3.4 Neighbourhood Grants
The LWS offers neighbourhood partners access to a ring-fenced fund to provide 
projects that will address health issues identified within their locality. Projects have 
included a portable film projector and screen so it can be set up in different places 
within the neighbourhood to bring the neighbourhood together for a film event. It 
has also helped to extend a shopping service which was vital during the initial 
lockdown when vulnerable people needed support. To date, seven projects have 
been funded with nearly £16,000 awarded. With the impact of the coronavirus 
pandemic, plans are in place to fund COVID 19 recovery projects in each of the 
neighbourhood areas.

4.     Future Delivery Focus 

The service has remained responsive and flexible to the needs of our communities 
since the pandemic started in the early spring of 2020 and the service will remain 
focused on rebuilding and supporting individuals to adapt to this transitional stage 
as we move through the next year. 

The pandemic has had obvious impact on lifestyle and behaviours associated with 
lockdown, poor mental health and the impact of financial and debt concerns on 
mental health, obesity and substance use. The contract extension will include a 
performance framework to ensure the service recognises these issues and relevant 
outcomes are core to delivery. 

Partnership working through a whole system approach will be central to delivery as 
well as acknowledgement of opportunities within the new Integrated Care System 
and development of a tailored local approach. 

Below are some additional key areas which will form part of the new performance 
framework:

 Support partners and communities to find a new normal, maintaining the 
achievements of the work from the COVID response, e.g. more 
online/virtual support opportunities, revisiting clients on the system, joint 
working across areas such as shopping provision. 

 Multi agency pathway development to ensure there is a seamless approach 
which is fit for purpose, relevant and clinically robust where services such 
as obesity and smoking are concerned. 

 Developing a virtual online offer, to include options for video calls and 
enable live streaming of groups so that those who may be housebound or 
who have limited mobility can still participate/be involved, addressing 
issues of social isolation and loneliness further.

 Supporting more robust preventative health approaches for key areas that 
were highlighted as detrimental to COVID recovery (obesity, smoking) and 
safeguarding people’s mental wellbeing consistently through 5 Ways to 
Wellbeing, being embedded in all our programmes.

Page 28

Agenda Item 5



 Face to face and small group activity helping people to address health 
behaviours that may have been negatively affected by lockdown. 

 Build in a transition phase to reduce self-reliance on services for clients 
who have become less active and potentially dependent on services such 
as shopping support.

 Recognition of the importance of environmental factors with the 
appreciation of the coastline, canals and woodland paths which may 
determine how our future grant round themes are established such as 
increasing walking and gardening groups. 

 Build staff morale and retention across the partnerships by offering 
development opportunities, good work places and inclusive practice.

 Harness the neighbourhood partnerships which have become more 
embedded, strengthened and focused since the pandemic and take 
advantage of the skills and expertise within the delivery partners.

 Undertake quality assurance checks with delivery partners and developing 
an evaluation process for clients who have progressed through our services 
to support ongoing improvement through service user voice and feedback.

5. Summary 
As we move from the response phase into recovery, the LWS will remain central to 
the community response and support those individuals and communities most in 
need. 

The service was originally conceived to support the 20% most deprived wards; 
however, the pandemic has illustrated how the health inequalities gap is widening 
and dependency on services such as food banks and the CAB, highlight the far-
reaching impacts of the pandemic which have had a significant and detrimental 
effect in our communities. 

The contract extension will ensure services continually to be aligned to those in 
most need and will be reviewed, evaluated and redesigned to ensure operational 
delivery remains relevant and current. 

The LWS as a key commissioned service is woven into the health improvement 
delivery element of the current public health service plan and will continue to deliver 
tailored support and intervention in line with community need to support the health 
and wellbeing for the people of Sefton in line with pandemic recovery in 2021 and 
beyond. 

Page 29

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Cabinet Date of Meeting: 2 September 2021

Subject: Procurement of Sefton Integrated Homeless Services

Report of: Head of Economic 
Growth & Housing

Wards Affected: Boroughwide

Cabinet Portfolio: Communities & Housing

Is this a Key 
Decision:

Yes Included in 
Forward Plan:

Yes 

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No 

Summary:
To gain authorisation to complete a procurement process to replace Homeless and 
Housing Related Support contracts with an Integrated Homeless Service from July 2022 
onwards.

Recommendation(s):

Cabinet agree:

(1) to  grant authority to the Head of Economic Growth and Housing to complete a light 
touch regime open procurement exercise to replace Homeless and Housing Related 
Support contracts that are due to expire on 30th June 2022 with an Integrated Homeless 
Service provision with an initial contract term of five years to commence from 1st July 
2022, with the option to further extend for a period of up to five years (1+1+1+1+1) 
subject to satisfactory performance of the successful Providers and the required budget 
being available.

(2) to grant authority to delegate the procurement process, service specification and 
tender evaluation criteria and final award of contracts to Head of Economic Growth & 
Housing in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Communities and Housing

(3) to grant authority to delegate the awarding of any subsequent extensions of contract, 
beyond the initial five-year contract period, to Head of Economic Growth & Housing in 
consultation with Cabinet Member for Communities and Housing subject to the required 
budget being available.

(4) to grant authority to delegate the decision to approve a one-off uplift in funding from 
2027 onwards over the remaining 5 years to Head of Economic Growth & Housing in 
consultation with Cabinet Member for Communities and Housing subject to any 
additional cost being contained within the existing budget for the Economic Growth and 
Housing Service or from additional external funding if available.

Page 31

Agenda Item 6



Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

Homeless and Housing Related Support contracts with an annual value of £877,824 
expire on 30th June 2022 and any replacement contracts must be procured in 
compliance with Public Contract Regulations.    

The services covered by these contracts are important services for the delivery of the 
Council’s Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy 2018-23. 

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

The Council could determine to only provide statutory homeless services and to cease 
provision of wholly discretionary and preventive service. Implications of deciding not to 
procure replacement services would be: 

 A reputational and financial risk to the authority by the potential failure to perform 
its statutory duty to homeless applicants. This could result in expensive litigation 
including judicial review proceedings.

 An increase in the cost of the Council having to provide temporary 
accommodation for homeless people in expensive B&B placements that we 
currently rarely use.

 A potential increase in rough sleeping in the Sefton Borough; the accommodation 
services provide accommodation for residents who would otherwise be street 
homeless. 

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs
Existing revenue budget exists to fund the commissioning of homeless services. This is 
being complemented by an additional contribution of £50,000 per annum from Flexible 
Homeless Support Grant, taking the total annual budget to £927,824. 

If the contract were to be extended beyond the initial 5-year term, any additional uplift 
granted will need to be built into future budget planning.

(B) Capital Costs
There are no Capital Costs for this report.

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):
The existing revenue budget to fund the commissioning of homeless services is 
£877,824. 
This is being complemented by an additional contribution of £50,000 per annum from 
Flexible Homeless Support Grant, taking the total annual budget to £927,824. 

If the contract is extended beyond the initial 5 year term, any additional uplift granted 
will need to be met from either existing budgets within the Economic Growth & Housing 

Page 32

Agenda Item 6



Service or from additional external funding if available.

Legal Implications:
The Council has statutory duties in respect of homelessness under Part VII of The 
Housing Act 1996 as amended by The Homelessness Act 2002.

Equality Implications:

The equality Implications have been identified and mitigated
Climate Emergency Implications:

The recommendations within this report will 
Have a positive impact No
Have a neutral impact Yes
Have a negative impact No
The Author has undertaken the Climate Emergency training for 
report authors

Yes

Providers will be requested to make a submission during the open procurement 
process regarding how their service delivery contributes towards Social Value, which 
includes green initiatives. The successful providers will be monitored against this as 
part of ongoing contract monitoring processes. The Provider will be able to develop and 
build upon existing ways of working to positively contribute to the Climate Change 
Emergency.

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:
Protect the most vulnerable:
Those who are homeless, and, those at risk of becoming homeless are among the most 
vulnerable in society.
Facilitate confident and resilient communities:
Through the intervention by the Council and its partners at the most critical moment 
when residents are homeless or at the risk of becoming homeless in order to prevent 
further reliance on public sector support in the future.
Commission, broker and provide core services:
The commissioning and delivery of services which are based on the needs of some of 
the most vulnerable in society.
Place – leadership and influencer:
Through the close working relationship with commissioned service providers to deliver 
services that help deliver the 2030 vision of the borough and the actions within the 
Council’s Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy Action Plan 2018-23.
Drivers of change and reform:
Through the understanding of the needs of the most vulnerable in society and change 
and reform of services in order to meet those needs.
Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity:
Help to relieve rough sleeping and homelessness in Sefton has a wide-ranging positive 
impact for those most vulnerable in society by providing residents with the most basic 
form of need; housing.
Greater income for social investment: 
Not applicable

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



Cleaner Greener
Not applicable

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Executive Director of Corporate Resources & Customer Services (FD6478/21) and 
the Chief Legal & Democratic Officer (LD4679/21) have been consulted and any 
comments have been incorporated into the report.

(B) External Consultations 

Current Commissioned Partners
Extensive consultation took place with all of the current Providers at the beginning of 
2021.

Market Engagement Event
A market Engagement Event took place in July 2021 to inform the market on the 
Council’s future commissioning intentions. The event was advertised via The CHEST 
with 16 different organisations attending. All subsequent questions from Providers have 
been directed through and answered via The Chest.

Wider Consultation
The Service Specification has also been developed in consultation with Homeless Link. 
Homeless Link are the national membership charity for organisations working directly 
with people who become homeless in England. They work to make services better and 
campaign for policy change that will help end homelessness.

The draft Service Specification has also been shared with the Liverpool City Region 
Lived Experience Group. Plans to develop a Sefton Lived Experience Group had started 
in 2019 but the Covid pandemic has stopped the development of the Group meeting but 
plans to continue the development of a Lived Experience Group will continue.

Separate meetings have also been undertaken with Camden Council, who have 
developed a similar process to what Sefton is proposing.

Discussions with Public Health colleagues and the National Probation Service regarding 
collaborative working and possible collaborative commissioning arrangements.

Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy 2018-23 and Homelessness Review
Extensive consultation with service users and partners in the development of the 
Homelessness Review, undertaken by the Housing Consultant Neil Morland. The 
Homelessness Review then informs the Homelessness Strategy and its Action Plan. The 
Homelessness Review findings were used in the development of this Service 
Specification.

Implementation Date for the Decision

Following the expiry of the “call-in” period for the Minutes of the Cabinet Meeting

Page 34

Agenda Item 6



Contact Officer: Graham Parry
Telephone Number: 0151 934 3927
Email Address: Graham.parry@sefton.gov.uk

Appendices:

The following appendices are attached to this report: 

1. Appendix A – Equality Impact Assessment 2021

Background Papers:

There following background papers are available for inspection:
- Sefton Homelessness Strategy 2018-2023

Decision - Sefton Homelessness Strategy 2018 - 2023

- Sefton Housing Strategy 2016-2021. Priority Theme: TACKLING BARRIERS TO 
OBTAINING SUITABLE HOUSING FOR THE MOST VULNERABLE AND 
ENSURING EQUAL ACCESS TO HOUSING SERVICES. This priority will meet 
the needs of more diverse communities within Sefton, supporting the needs of 
populations who are more vulnerable or not represented through the conventional 
housing market. This priority also seeks to address the issues of homelessness 
building upon the Council’s adopted 5-year Homelessness Strategy (2018‐23)

1. Introduction/Background

1.1 The current homeless services in Sefton comes to an end on June 2022.

1.2 Within the report, ‘A Traumatised System’ the key findings were that ‘(to) create a 
fully-functioning system to prevent and end homelessness, an integrated strategy 
for housing and support, under-pinned by stable funding, is needed at both 
national and local levels.’ 

2 Homelessness Strategy 2018-23
2.1 The current Homelessness Strategy 2018-2023 contained the following actions, 

‘Make best use of national and local government funding for tackling 
homelessness, to drive-up quality, value and effectiveness of outcomes in tackling 
homelessness.’

2.2 Since 2018, Sefton has taken advantage of the national government funding 
available through MHCLG to deliver a range of services which have improved 
homeless provision in Sefton and seen our Rough Sleeper numbers fall from 12 to 
0 (for many months within 2021). Other initiatives such as dedicated Complex 
Needs Rough Sleeper beds; a Clinical Outreach Nurse working alongside our 
Rough Sleeper Service; a Navigators service who works collaboratively alongside 
complex individuals to help them access services, and, the introduction of a 
Lead Psychologist service working alongside our Homeless Services in order to 
strengthen staff knowledge of working in a Trauma Informed way and to also 
strengthen those referral pathways into mental health services for individuals 
within homeless services.

Page 35

Agenda Item 6

http://smbc-modgov-03/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=10707


3. Current Provision
3.1 The Council commissioned a range of services across 10 lots in 2015, which 

ranged from accommodation-based support services, accommodation for specific 
groups such as Offenders and Complex Women; floating support services 
(generic and specialised); an intensive floating support service; an assertive rough 
sleeper outreach service and a Housing Advice service. 

3.2 The Council provided a range of services, which provided both preventative 
services and statutory services, in which Light for Life provided housing advice 
within the statutory assessment service prior to the introduction of the 
Homelessness Reduction Act 2017, which placed a greater responsibility on 
Councils to intervene at an earlier stage when someone was identified as being at 
risk of being homeless within 56 days.

3.3 The total budget for these commissioned services was £877,824 and the 
contracts run until 30th June 2022.

4. Proposed Service Provision
4.1 It is proposed to have a single lot comprising of four elements, these being:

 Rough Sleeper Prevention Service
 Supported Temporary Accommodation Service
 Navigator Support Service
 Floating Support Service

4.2 The contract will be offered for a maximum of ten years, in order to provide the 
stability and confidence to Providers so they can plan effectively.
The budget for the initial five years will be £927,824 per annum (including £50,000 
of external grant funding), and Providers are expected to come together to form 
a consortium that can deliver all four elements for this integrated service. 

4.3 Sefton is moving away from a deficit-based model, where individuals are asked 
what is wrong with them, to a strengths-based model, where individuals are 
empowered to improve their lives, with ‘well-being’ being the ultimate outcome. 

5. Procurement Process
5.1 It is proposed that a Light Touch regime open procurement exercise is

conducted to commission an Integrated Homeless Service with an initial
contract term of five years that will commence from the 1st July 2022, with the
option to further extend for a period of up to five years, (1+1+1+1+1), with the 
flexibility of extending in for any number of these years, subject to satisfactory 
performance of the successful supplier and the required budget being available.

5.2 A Light Touch regime is being undertaken for the following reasons;
Procurement of services which are classified as falling within Schedule 3 –
‘Social and Other Specific Services’ of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015, 
must be considered against a higher European Union spend threshold (for the 
whole value of the contract including any optional periods) of:
£ 663,540.00
Where this spend threshold is exceeded officers shall follow the applicable, and 
Schedule 3 specific, ’Light Touch Regime’ with the assistance of Officers of the 
Corporate Procurement Unit’

Page 36

Agenda Item 6



5.3 A Market Engagement Day took place on 13th July, which gave information about 
Sefton’s future commissioning intentions and was advertised to the Market via 
The Chest. The Event was attended by 23 organisations.

5.4 Updated service specification continue to be developed in consultation with 
relevant stakeholders and organisations and which will reflect required aims and 
intentions of the Council and outcomes for service users.

Page 37

Agenda Item 6



Appendix A 
EQUALITY IMPACT 

ASSESSMENT

Policy/Practice
Sefton Integrated Homeless Service
Date July 2021 Page Number 8 of 14

Public Sector Equality Duty
The equality duty was developed to harmonise the equality duties and to extend it across the 
protected characteristics. It consists of a general equality duty, supported by specific duties 
which are imposed by secondary legislation.  In summary, those subject to the equality duty 
must, in the exercise of their functions, have due regard to the need to:

 Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct 
prohibited by the Act. 

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic 
and those who do not. 

 Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those 
who do not.

DEPARTMENT NAME is part of Sefton Council and we adhere to all Council policies.

 “Equality Impact Assessments are an important tool in demonstrating how the Council have 
paid, and are paying, due regard to the public-sector equality duty.  Equality assessments form 
part of the information provided to decision makers within the Council and are available as part 
of the relevant committee report”.

Sefton.Gov.UK
https://sefton.gov.uk/your-council/plans-policies/equality-and-diversity.aspx

This Equality Impact Assessment is specific to the services provided by Sefton@Work.

The assessment is split into the following sections:

Section 1 Describe the Policy/Practice
Section 2 Could there be any implications for a protected characteristic group (as 

defined by the Equality Act 2010) in this (or the development of) this 
policy/practice?
Under the Equality Act (2010) the following are the nine protected characteristics:

1. Age
2. Disability
3. Gender Reassignment
4. Marriage and Civil Partnership
5. Pregnancy and Maternity
6. Race
7. Religion or Belief
8. Sex
9. Sexual Orientation

Section 3 What are the potential implications or barriers?

Page 38

Agenda Item 6

https://sefton.gov.uk/your-council/plans-policies/equality-and-diversity.aspx


Section 4 Evidence of addressing barriers and meeting public duties
Section 5 Outline any changes to be made to policy/practice because of this 

assessment
Section 6 Progress update on actions required for the named policy/practice

SECTION 1 - Describe Policy/Practice
What are the aims?
Provide a range of commissioned services for homeless people with a range of support needs in order to:

 Prevent/relieve/eliminate Rough Sleeping in the borough
 Accommodation based support – for people with a range of support needs
 Navigator Support Services – intensive support service for individuals with complex/high needs to 

advocate/direct them into services
 Floating Support Services – low level tenancy support service to prevent homelessness

These commissioned services were developed in line with the recommendations made in the 2018 Homeless 
Review, which subsequently helped develop Sefton’s Homelessness Strategy 2018-23.

As part of the development of this Homelessness Strategy in the formulation of the Homelessness Review and this 
Homelessness Strategy a number of face-to-face interviews were undertaken with people who were experiencing 
homelessness and the Providers of Sefton’s Homelessness Services were invited to complete the Sefton Homeless 
Strategy 2018 – 2023 Stakeholder Consultation in March 2018.
An Equality Impact Assessment was written at the time of the development of the Homelessness Strategy, which 
feeds into this EIA.

How often is this policy/practice reviewed?
Section 5&6 will be reviewed / updated quarterly
Full EqIA will be reviewed annually by the EDD Working Group and published for consultation

Age

 There were concerns raised about the availability of supported housing and housing related 
support for single homeless young people. 
There were also concerns raised about the availability of better support before, during and after 
leaving care. Sefton provide a range of homelessness prevention activities for people leaving care, 
however these practices and protocols could be improved.

Disability
Whilst there was nothing of concern coming from the findings relating specifically to disability, we 
are aware of the need to continue to ensure that our services are accessible to all members of the 
community.

Gender 
Reassignment

People who are more likely to experience hidden homelessness are more likely to be of a young 
adult, identify as lesbian, gay, bisexual and/or transgender, and/or escaping domestic abuse

Marriage & 
Civil 

Partnership

As part of the selection criteria, all Providers will be asked to produce their Equal Opportunities 
policy 

Pregnancy & 
Maternity

Whilst there was nothing of concern coming from the findings relating specifically to disability, we 
are aware of the need to continue to ensure that our services are accessible to all members of the 
community.

Race
Whilst there was nothing of concern coming from the findings relating specifically to race/ethnicity 
we are aware of the need to continue to ensure that our services are accessible to all members of 
the community.

Religion or 
Belief

Whilst there was nothing of concern coming from the findings relating specifically to race/ethnicity 
we are aware of the need to continue to ensure that our services are accessible to all members of 
the community.

Page 39

Agenda Item 6



Sex/Gender
The review identified a high level of single male homeless applicants. Sefton aims to develop a 
better understanding as to why there are exceptionally high levels of lone male applicants in 
temporary accommodation, relative the number of households with dependent children. 

Sexual 
Orientation

People who are more likely to experience hidden homelessness are more likely to be of a young 
adult, identify as lesbian, gay, bisexual and/or transgender, and/or escaping domestic abuse.

Page 40

Agenda Item 6



SECTION 3 - What are the potential implications or barriers?

Age

There were concerns raised about the availability of supported housing and housing related support 
for single homeless young people. 
There were also concerns raised about the availability of better support before, during and after 
leaving care. Sefton provide a range of homelessness prevention activities for people leaving care, 
however these practices and protocols could be improved.

Disability
Whilst there was nothing of concern coming from the findings relating specifically to disability, we 
are aware of the need to continue to ensure that our services are accessible to all members of the 
community.

Gender 
Reassignment

People who are more likely to experience hidden homelessness are more likely to be of a young 
adult, identify as lesbian, gay, bisexual and/or transgender, and/or escaping domestic abuse
Whilst the Covid pandemic is believed to have revealed a very large number of hidden homeless to 
the Council, a greater understanding of hidden homelessness needs to continue to be developed by 
Sefton.

Marriage & 
Civil 

Partnership

As part of the selection criteria, all Providers will be asked to produce their Equal Opportunities 
policy 

Pregnancy & 
Maternity

Whilst there was nothing of concern coming from the findings relating specifically to disability, we 
are aware of the need to continue to ensure that our services are accessible to all members of the 
community.

Race
Whilst there was nothing of concern coming from the findings relating specifically to race/ethnicity 
we are aware of the need to continue to ensure that our services are accessible to all members of 
the community.

Religion or 
Belief

Whilst there was nothing of concern coming from the findings relating specifically to race/ethnicity 
we are aware of the need to continue to ensure that our services are accessible to all members of 
the community.

Sex/Gender

The review identified a high level of single male homeless applicants. Sefton aims to develop a better 
understanding as to why there are exceptionally high levels of lone male applicants in temporary 
accommodation, relative the number of households with dependent children. The number of 
commissioned supported accommodation units is proposed to be increased from 101 to 140 with a 
range of services that look to address the trauma these individuals may have faced and to improve 
their wellbeing and help move into independent living with continued support available if required.

Sexual 
Orientation

People who are more likely to experience hidden homelessness are more likely to be of a young 
adult, identify as lesbian, gay, bisexual and/or transgender, and/or escaping domestic abuse.
Whilst the Covid pandemic is believed to have revealed a very large number of hidden homeless to 
the Council, a greater understanding of hidden homelessness needs to continue to be developed by 
Sefton.

Page 41

Agenda Item 6



SECTION 4 - Evidence of addressing barriers and meeting public duties

Age

There were concerns raised about the availability of supported housing and housing related 
support for single homeless young people. 
There were also concerns raised about the availability of better support before, during and after 
leaving care. Sefton provide a range of homelessness prevention activities for people leaving care, 
however these practices and protocols could be improved. Sefton’s Homelessness Team continue 
to liaise with Children’s Services regarding the continuing improvement of services for people 
leaving care.

Disability
Whilst there was nothing of concern coming from the findings relating specifically to disability, we 
are aware of the need to continue to ensure that our services are accessible to all members of the 
community.

Gender 
Reassignment

People who are more likely to experience hidden homelessness are more likely to be of a young 
adult, identify as lesbian, gay, bisexual and/or transgender, and/or escaping domestic abuse
Whilst the Covid pandemic is believed to have revealed a very large number of hidden homeless to 
the Council, a greater understanding of hidden homelessness needs to continue to be developed 
by Sefton.

Marriage & 
Civil 

Partnership

As part of the selection criteria, all Providers will be asked to produce their Equal Opportunities 
policy 

Pregnancy & 
Maternity

Whilst there was nothing of concern coming from the findings relating specifically to 
pregnancy/maternity, we are aware of the need to continue to ensure that our services are 
accessible to all members of the community.

Race
Whilst there was nothing of concern coming from the findings relating specifically to race/ethnicity 
we are aware of the need to continue to ensure that our services are accessible to all members of 
the community.

Religion or 
Belief

Whilst there was nothing of concern coming from the findings relating specifically to religion or 
belief we are aware of the need to continue to ensure that our services are accessible to all 
members of the community.

Sex/Gender

The review identified a high level of single male homeless applicants. Sefton aims to develop a 
better understanding as to why there are exceptionally high levels of lone male applicants in 
temporary accommodation, relative the number of households with dependent children. The 
number of commissioned supported accommodation units is proposed to be increased from 101 to 
140 with a range of services that look to address the trauma these individuals may have faced and 
to improve their wellbeing and help move into independent living with continued support available 
if required.

Sexual 
Orientation

People who are more likely to experience hidden homelessness are more likely to be of a young 
adult, identify as lesbian, gay, bisexual and/or transgender, and/or escaping domestic abuse.
Whilst the Covid pandemic is believed to have revealed a very large number of hidden homeless to 
the Council, a greater understanding of hidden homelessness needs to continue to be developed 
by Sefton.

Page 42

Agenda Item 6



SECTION 5 – Outline any changes to the policy/practice or actions to taken because of this 
assessment

Reference Action Date to be 
completed

Officer/Group 
Responsible

Introduce exits surveys when people have been 
through accommodation-based services in order 
to capture views/opinions on the level of service 
provided

Introduction 
of the new 

commissioned 
services (1st 

July 2022

Graham Parry

EIA to be shared with a range of local partners 
and networks for their views 

August 2021 Graham 
Parry/Paul 

McCann

Name of staff member completing this 
EQIA

Signature

Date of completion

Date of review Action Points to be reviewed 
quarterly

Page 43

Agenda Item 6



SECTION 6 - Progress update on actions required for the named policy/practice

Reference Progress of Action Completed Y/N Update Date Officer/Group 
Responsible

Page 44

Agenda Item 6



Report to: Cabinet Date of Meeting: 2 September2021

Subject: Children’s Social Care Workforce Review

Report of: Executive Director 
of Children's Social 
Care and Education

Wards Affected: (All Wards);

Portfolio: Cabinet Member - Children's Social Care
Cabinet Member – Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate 
Services

Is this a Key 
Decision:

No Included in 
Forward Plan:

No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

To agree additional posts within the structure of Children’s Social Care. The additional 
posts outlined in this paper aim to provide some further injection into the workforce and 
begin further improvements in practice for children, as well as addressing costs.

Recommendation(s):

To confirm in consultation with the Cabinet Member – Children’s Social Care and 
Cabinet Member – Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services that delegated 
authority be given to the Executive Director of Children’s Social Care and Education 
Excellence and the Executive Director Corporate Resources and Customer Services to 
proceed with adaptations to the model of the department.

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

Sefton Metropolitan Council is committed to delivering the best services for our most 
vulnerable children and families. There is a commitment by Members and Officers to 
make rapid improvement in the delivery of these services. There is a shared ambition for 
good and outstanding rated services.

Over the last 6 months a significant amount of diagnostic work has been undertaken and 
triangulation of the quality of services has been informed through the OFSTED focused 
visit of March 2021 and previous inspections into children’s services and the experience 
of children in receiving those services. The Council accepts the issues raised by 
OFSTED in their visit and wishes to improve outcomes for children and families.

The Improvement notice issued by the DfE in June 2021 has led to the establishment of 
an Improvement Board, with an Independent Chair. The notice lasts for 12 months and is 
supported by a DfE Advisor. The activity and recommendations are not limited to this 12-
month notice because the request and design of the services aims to provide long term 
sustainability, continuous improvement and capacity to manage increased demand for 

Page 45

Agenda Item 7



services. The recommendations are based upon “what good looks like” and to address 
critical issues in the delivery of successful outcomes for children.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

N/A

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs

At the Cabinet meeting of July 2021, members agreed to the creation of a budget of 
£1.5m for Childrens Services for increased staffing levels.  To date some temporary 
resources have been brought into the service that will be the first call on this amount.  

The Phase 1 staffing proposal contained within this report will have a part year effect in 
this year and at this stage it is estimated that this will also be able to be funded by this 
temporary £1.5m allocation.  

The full year effect of the Phase 1 structure will be £2.3m from 2022/23. This demand 
pressure will be built into the council’s medium term financial plan for the period 2022/23 
to 2024/25 and this will be reported to both Cabinet and Council in the autumn of 2021.  
The ongoing cost of the structure will therefore need to be met from options presented 
through the local government finance settlement or savings made within the councils 
existing budget.  This will be included in the budget report for 2022/23 for council 
decision and will follow a similar path to previous demand led pressures which are 
identified mid year and have a longer term impact.

In addition to the staff requirement within Childrens social care there is also a need to 
increase resources in Early help (for a period of 6 months) and legal services (for a 
period of 2 years)- these costs will be met from existing cost of change resources or 
additional funding that the council already holds and will be subject to delegated 
decision.

(B) Capital Costs

N/A

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):
This report has staffing implications therefore the agreed processes and engagement 
with staff and Trade Unions will be followed.

There will also be additional resource implications such as IT equipment.

Legal Implications:

Equality Implications:
There are no equality implications. 

Page 46

Agenda Item 7



Climate Emergency Implications:

The recommendations within this report will 
Have a positive impact No
Have a neutral impact Yes
Have a negative impact No
The Author has undertaken the Climate Emergency training for 
report authors

Yes

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable: 
This report sets out how the service supports children and young people and protects 
children at risk of harm.

Facilitate confident and resilient communities:
Children’s social care work with children and their families to improve outcomes for 
children

Commission, broker and provide core services: Children’s Social Care supports the 
aspiration for all services for children to be good or better.

Place – leadership and influencer: N/A

Drivers of change and reform: N/A

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: N/A

Greater income for social investment: N/A

Cleaner Greener: N/A

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Executive Director of Corporate Resources and Customer Services (FD.6493/21) 
and the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer (LD.4694/21) have been consulted and any 
comments have been incorporated into the report.

(B) External Consultations 

None

Contact Officer: Lisa Lyons
Telephone Number:
Email Address: lisa.lyons@sefton.gov.uk

Page 47

Agenda Item 7



Appendices:

There are no appendices to this report

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

Page 48

Agenda Item 7



1. Introduction/Background

Principles and Rationale for Additional Capacity:

1.1 Through diagnostic we have followed the journey of the child through the system, 
in other words the ability for services to effectively respond and meet children’s 
needs at the earliest opportunity

1.2 Staff engagement has also occurred to look at the barriers and issues to 
delivering quality services in a timely and effective way.

1.3 By doing these things we have established gaps in function, capacity and barriers 
to meeting key activity.

1.4 The request is cognisant of the established model and does not propose a 
restructure but rather an adaptation and addition of resource which will drive 
quality and meet needs of children, families and the workforce. Any changes will 
be subject to appropriate consultation with Trade Unions and employees and 
subject to the existing policies that operate in respect of employees.

1.5 This request has been made as part of the development of a business plan/ vision 
for sustainable quality children’s services over a 2021/23 financial cycle. The 
evidence bases for this are:

 Diagnostic and advice from OFSTED inspections and Partner in Practice reviews. 
(Cheshire West are the regional Partner in Practice which is a DfE collaboration 
between authorities to support practice improvement).

 Reviews of strengths and weakness in the social care delivery have been made 
since the 2016 Inspection of Local Authority children’s services known as ILACS. 
We are due a repeat of this type of inspection and it can occur anytime from 
September 2021.

 Learning from complaints on service delivery and an analysis of service delivery 
issues.

 Workforce engagement sessions around practice issues and tools to do the job.
 Statutory compliance and functions.
 Data and finance analysis on areas of greatest spend, especially high cost 

placements and permanence.

1.6 In terms of the workforce, a phased approach is being considered and phase one 
is recommended on the basis that a wholescale restructure is counterproductive. 
A transformation of this sort would take at least 12 months to prepare and launch 
effectively. The timing of this is not aligned with our need to make immediate 
improvements. Staff need to see immediate relief in capacity and positive 
outcomes and there are many areas of the service where the structure works well 
but where more capacity is required to address demands. 

1.7 The phase allows us to modify our capacity and take stock of how improvements 
have provided workload relief and better outcomes without necessarily disrupting 
existing arrangements.

Page 49

Agenda Item 7



1.8 Additionally, with the sequencing of the phases especially around Placement 
Commissioning and management of children in care cohorts in high cost 
arrangements, we can begin to reduce the spend in this area. Financially this is 
the biggest area of potential efficiencies and improved quality.

1.9 The other additional capacity in phase one provides for our workforce support and 
timely interventions for children which supports our ambition around a stable and 
permanent, high skilled workforce.

1.10 Phase 1 is key in providing critical support and improvements into the service. 
This means ensuring that there is function in the service which meets statutory 
compliance. These are also “spend to save” initiatives on workforce recruitment 
retention and permanent staff and reducing high cost packages and numbers of 
children in care. Subject to Council approvals a review of phase 1 will be 
undertaken before phase 2 is instigated to ensure it is providing effective 
assistance to children and families and is providing the necessary support to meet 
the OFSTED visit recommendations and the financial support is contained within 
the available resources for 2022/23 and beyond. 

Phase 1
 Ongoing recruitment of social workers - this should continue throughout all phases 
 Assistant team managers in social care locality teams
 Additional administrative capacity
 Case manager - overseeing care proceedings and Public Law Outline
 Additional team within the fostering service for assessment of new foster carers to 

develop in-house capacity, adoption support function and a support service for the 
assessment and support of Special Guardianship placements, Kinship and 
connected carers

 Family Support workers (children social care locality teams and corporate 
parenting)

 Pilot an assessment team within First Response and Multi-Agency Safeguarding 
Hub known as MASH.

Phase 2:
 On-going recruitment of social workers
 Development of the assessment team, this will be tested through piloting in the 

first instance
 Assistant team managers for other teams (i.e. corporate parenting, assessment 

team)  
 Creating one family support worker per team for the remaining teams (for those 

teams who are identified that require support workers i.e. Children with Disability. 
 Recruitment of an administrative manager.

Phase 3:
 On-going recruitment of social workers
  potential for a commissioned contact service to provide capacity but to review 

how we deliver some of our services
 Permanent recruitment to some posts currently filled by interim staff at a senior 

level such as the Executive Director of Children’s Social Care and Education. 

Page 50

Agenda Item 7



2. The Financial Case

2.1 Members will recall that within the Council’s outturn report of July 2021, a 
recommendation to create a £1.5m budget to increase staffing levels within the 
service was agreed.  To date some additional capacity has been brought into the 
service and this will be funded from that sum.

2.2 If agreed, the phase 1 proposal will start in the current year and it is estimated that 
the part year effect of this could be up to £0.970m.  It is estimated at this time that 
this can be contained within the £1.5m already approved.

2.3 The full year effect of the phase 2 structure is estimated to be £2.3m.  As with 
previous years, when such a pressure is identified in year that is unavoidable, the 
Council reflects this immediately in its Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) for the 
following 3 years.  As a result this future potential cost will be reflected in the 
upcoming MTFP that will be presented to Cabinet and Council in the autumn of 
2021.  Following this the Council’s budget report for 2022/23 will reflect this cost 
and future financing which will be subject to decision at Budget Council.  The 
additional cost will need to be met from either the options presented in the local 
government finance settlement or savings from existing budgets.  With the 
additional investment in staffing it is anticipated that over the next 2-3 years the 
council’s placements and packages budget which has been under unprecedented 
pressure could reduce.  If this is the case, this will reduce the funding that needs 
to be found however this cannot be defined at this stage therefore this will be 
reported in future to members and will net off against this future budget increase.  
All additional costs will be contained within the budgets identified in this report

2.4 The proposals and costs reflected in this report reflect those in relation to 
Children’s Social Care only, however additional support is also required in Early 
help (for a period of 6 months) and Legal Services (for 2 years to reflect increased 
caseload).  As these are temporary posts, it is proposed that these teams will be 
funded from existing resources eg cost of change budgets or other external 
funding sources- these allocations will be subject to agreed delegations

3. Conclusion

3.1 The whole adaptions and additions to the workforce are proposed to be 
undertaken over three phases. The additional posts outlined in this paper are the 
first of those three, which will aim to provide some initial injection into the 
workforce and begin some improvements in practice, outcomes for children as 
well as driving down cost.  Each phase will be reviewed to understand the impact 
this has on children and families, workforce and outcomes and the costs will be 
reviewed to ensure it sits within the available financial framework.

Page 51

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Cabinet Date of Meeting: Thursday 2 
September 2021

Subject: Financial Management 2021/22 to 2024/25 and Framework for 
Change 2020 - Revenue and Capital Budget Update 2021/22 
including the Financial Impact of COVID-19 on the 2021/22 
Budget - September Update

Report of: Executive Director 
of Corporate 
Resources and 
Customer Services

Wards Affected: (All Wards);

Portfolio: Leader of the Council

Is this a Key 
Decision:

Yes Included in 
Forward Plan:

Yes

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

To inform Cabinet of: 
1. The current financial implications of COVID-19 on the 2021/22 Budget;
2. The current position relating to the 2021/22 revenue budget;
3. The current forecast on Council Tax and Business Rates collection for 2021/22; 
4. The monitoring position of the Council’s capital programme to the end of July 

2021: 
 The forecast expenditure to year end; 
 Variations against the approved budgets and an explanation of those 

variations for consideration by Members;
 Updates to spending profiles and proposed amendments to capital budgets 

necessary to ensure the efficient delivery of capital projects are also 
presented for approval.

Recommendation(s):

Cabinet is recommended to: 

Revenue Budget

1) Note the current financial implications of COVID-19 on the 2021/22 Budget 
together with the key issues that will influence the final position;

2) Note the current position relating to the 2021/22 revenue budget;
3) Recognise the financial risks associated with the delivery of the 2021/22 revenue 

budget and acknowledge that the forecast outturn position will continue to be 
reviewed to ensure a balanced forecast outturn position and financial 
sustainability can be achieved;

Page 53

Agenda Item 8



Capital Programme

4) Note the spending profiles across financial years for the approved capital 
programme (paragraph 7.1);

5) Recommend to Council that they approve a supplementary capital estimate of 
£1.875m for the development of Southport Town Deal projects (paragraph 7.10);

6) Recommend to Council that they approve a supplementary capital estimate of up 
to £2.500m for the pre-development phase of the Marine Lake Events Centre, 
subject to the bid to the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority to fund the 
works being successful (paragraph 7.10);

7) Note the latest capital expenditure position as at 31 July 2021 of £9.316m 
(paragraph 7.3); the latest full year forecast is £45.475m (paragraph 7.4).

8) Note explanations of variances to project budgets (paragraph 7.7); and,
9) Note that capital resources will be managed by the Executive Director Corporate 

Resources and Customer Services to ensure the capital programme remains fully 
funded and that capital funding arrangements secure the maximum financial 
benefit to the Council (paragraph 7.13).

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

To ensure Cabinet are informed of the current position in relation to the 2021/22 revenue 
budget, including COVID19 pressures and additional funding being made available to the 
Council.   

To provide an updated forecast of the outturn position with regard to the collection of 
Council Tax and Business Rates.  

To keep members informed of the progress of the Capital Programme against the 
profiled budget for 2021/22 and agreed allocations for future years. 

To progress any changes that are required in order to maintain a relevant and accurate 
budget profile necessary for effective monitoring of the Capital Programme.

To approve any updates to funding resources so that they can be applied to capital 
schemes in the delivery of the Council’s overall capital strategy.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)
N/A

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs
The report indicates that for 2021/22 an underspend position of £0.583m is currently 
forecast but that mitigating actions may be required if the position subsequently moves to 
a deficit position.

(B) Capital Costs
The Council’s capital budget in 2021/22 is £46.142m. As at the end of July 2021 
expenditure of £9.316m has been incurred and a full year outturn of £45.475m is 
currently forecast.

Page 54

Agenda Item 8



Implications of the Proposals:
The following implications of this proposal have been considered and where there are 
specific implications, these are set out as follows:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):
It is currently forecast that an underspend position of £0.583m will be achieved for 
2021/22. However, it should be noted that significant pressure and risk remains in four 
key business areas, namely Children’s Social Care, Children with Disabilities, Education 
Excellence and Locality Services. If these budgets experience further demand pressure 
during the remainder of the year corresponding savings may need to be identified.  If 
this cannot take place there may be a call on the Council’s General Balances.

Legal Implications:
None

Equality Implications:
There are no equality implications.

Climate Emergency Implications:

The recommendations within this report will 
Have a positive impact N
Have a neutral impact Y
Have a negative impact N
The Author has undertaken the Climate Emergency training for 
report authors

N

The allocations of capital funding outlined in section 7 may be spent on projects that will 
have a high climate change impact as they could relate to new build, rebuild, 
refurbishment, retrofit and demolition proposals. Environmental consideration will be 
taken into account when specific projects are designed and tendered – which will help to 
mitigate negative impacts.

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:
Effective Financial Management and the development and delivery of sustainable annual 
budgets support each theme of the Councils Core Purpose.

Protect the most vulnerable:
See comment above

Facilitate confident and resilient communities:
See comment above

Commission, broker and provide core services:
See comment above

Place – leadership and influencer:
See comment above

Page 55

Agenda Item 8



Drivers of change and reform:
See comment above

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity:
See comment above

Greater income for social investment: 
See comment above

Cleaner Greener:
See comment above

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Executive Director of Corporate Resources & Customer Services is the author of the 
report (FD 6490/21)

The Chief Legal and Democratic Officer has been consulted and has no comments on 
the report (LD 4691/21).

(B) External Consultations 

N/A

Implementation Date for the Decision

Following the expiry of the “call-in” period for the Minutes of the Cabinet Meeting

Contact Officer: Paul Reilly
Telephone Number: Tel: 0151 934 4106
Email Address: paul.reilly@sefton.gov.uk

Appendices:

The following appendices are attached to this report: 

APPENDIX A – Capital Programme 2021/22 to 2023/24

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

Page 56

Agenda Item 8



1. Introduction
 
1.1 In March 2021, Council approved the budget for 2021/22. This report provides an 

update on the forecast revenue outturn position for 2021/22, including the 
significant impact of COVID-19 on the Council’s 2021/22 budget, and reflects the 
position at the end of the first quarter of the financial year.

1.2 The report also outlines the current position regarding key income streams for the 
Authority, namely Council Tax and Business Rates. Variations against expected 
receipts in these two areas will also affect the Council’s financial position in future 
years. 

1.3 The capital section of the report informs Members of the latest estimate of capital 
expenditure for 2021/22 and forecast expenditure for 2022/23 and 2023/24. The 
capital budget to date is presented in paragraph 7.1. Paragraphs 7.13 and 7.4 
review progress of the capital programme. Finally, paragraph 7.10 confirms that 
there are adequate levels of resources available to finance the capital programme.

2. Impact of COVID 19 on 2021/22 Budget
2.1 As part of the Council Budget Report presented to the Budget Council meeting in 

March, Members received details of the full range of financial issues that were 
being faced by the Council in 2021/22 arising from the pandemic, and how this cost 
would be funded.  A summary is shown below:

2021/22
£’m

Sales, Fees and Charges Income
Estimated Net Losses 1,500
Use of 2021/22 Emergency Funding -1.500

0.000

Collection Fund deficit in 2020/21 arising from COVID-19
Net losses after government compensation scheme 5.812
Collection Fund Surplus from 2019/20 -1.072

4.740

Collection Fund deficit re. 2021/22
Reduction in Council Tax Base 3.564
Council Tax Support Grant -3.471
Business Rates forecast losses 3.000

3.093

Temporary Mitigating Measures to Offset Council Tax / 
Business Rates Losses
Use of 2020/21 Emergency Funding -4.000
Framework for Change 2020 – Council of 2023 Savings -0.890
Forecast Underspend in 2020/21 -1.000
Vacancy Management -0.500
School Closure Reserve -0.500
Use of 2021/22 Emergency Funding -0.943

Page 57

Agenda Item 8



-7.833

Net Impact on 2021/22 Budget 0.000

2.2 An update on the pressures is provided below:

Sales, Fees and Charges Income
2.3 There was a significant impact on income from sales, fees and charges for a range 

of services during 2020/21. Whilst some income streams temporarily recovered 
when lockdown was eased and would expect to do so again once we come out of 
the national lockdown, others are expected to remain impacted whilst measures are 
still in place for social distancing, etc.  

2.4 The government has announced that the compensation scheme in place in 2020/21 
to provide support for a proportion of losses will be extended until the end of June 
2021.  Therefore, an element of losses will be funded through the compensation 
scheme. The Council is currently finalising the claim for April to June.

2.5 It is currently forecast that this could result in a net loss of income of £1.500m 
during 2021/22, which is unchanged from the figure assumed in the Budget Report.  
This forecast will be reviewed as there is more experience of the impact on 
reopened facilities, especially now all restrictions were eased from 19 June 2021.  
Any balance of losses not funded by the scheme will need to be covered from the 
emergency funding received by the Council in 2021/22.  It is currently assumed that 
income levels will return to normal from 2022/23, however, this will continue to be 
assessed based on the experience once all restrictions are eased.

Collection Fund deficit in 2020/21 arising from COVID-19
2.6 The Council, in line with all other local authorities, is experiencing significant 

reductions in income from both Council Tax and Business Rates.  This relates to 
increases in households eligible to claim under the Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
and some increases in Business Rates appeals as well as reductions in collection 
rates. 

2.7 The government announced financial support would be provided to offset 75% of 
irrecoverable losses.  However, Council Tax losses relating to non-collection aren’t 
eligible for compensation under the scheme, neither are adjustments relating to 
previous years.  The Budget Report estimated that net losses not covered by the 
scheme would therefore be up to £5.812m and would need to be funded.  The final 
deficit position for both Council Tax and Business Rates, along with the amount of 
financial support that has been claimed from the government, have now been 
finalised and has resulted in a net loss of £6.858m.  However, it is anticipated that 
some of these losses will be reversed in 2021/22 so the net impact will be within the 
£5.812m previously estimated.

Council Tax Base
2.8 The Council Tax Base is set by Council in January each year.  It reflects changes in 

the number of properties and the value of exemptions and discounts.  In recent 
years the Council Tax Base has increased steadily due to housing growth.  
However, due to the impact of COVID-19 on the number of CTRS claimants, the 

Page 58

Agenda Item 8



reduced collection rate and the slowdown in housing growth, there has been a 
significant reduction in the Base for 2021/22.  This reduced the Council Tax 
Requirement by £3.564m.  

2.9 The government has announced additional funding to support the loss of income 
due to increased numbers of CTRS claimants.  Sefton’s allocation is £3.471m and 
will be used to offset the majority of reduced funding due to the decrease in the 
Council Tax Base.

2.10 Currently, the number of CTRS claimants hasn’t increased as forecast (this is 
mainly due to the government’s “furlough” scheme being extended which may have 
delayed any increase) and collection rates are slightly ahead of expectations.  If 
these factors continue then a surplus may be generated, although due to 
regulations this would only be credited to the Council in 2022/23.  Section 4 
highlights that currently a surplus of £1.369m is forecast.

Business Rates
2.11 Business Rates collection rates reduced in 2020/21 due to COVID-19 and are 

expected to remain lower than normal in 2021/22.  In addition, at the time of the 
Budget Report there were significant numbers of appeals in 2020/21 due to 
restrictions being in place. It was estimated that based on the 2020/21 position that 
£3.000m of the Council’s income will be at risk as businesses no longer exist or 
cannot afford to pay business rates.  

2.12 However, central government have announced that appeals relating to COVID19 
won’t be allowed under amended regulations.  Therefore, it is forecast that the 
income now at risk is only £1.600m.

Cost of responding to the pandemic
2.13 The Council has received £8.063m of emergency funding to assist with covering 

the financial pressures it will face in 2021/22 due to the pandemic.  The budget 
assumes that £2.443m of this will be required to fund the potential losses described 
above.  This leaves £5.620m to fund any further financial pressures.

2.14 Due to the ongoing impact of COVID-19 it is anticipated that the remaining 
emergency funding will be fully utilised in directly supporting the Council’s response 
to the pandemic and any further loss of income that is anticipated between now and 
the end of the year. Cabinet in June 2021 agreed that the further use of this funding 
be delegated to the Leader of the Council following advice from the Chief Executive 
and the Councils s151 officer. 

Summary
2.15 It should be noted that the figures included above are still an early indication of the 

position in 2021/22 and will continue to be reviewed on a monthly basis.  A full 
review of the position, and the use of emergency funding received in 2020/21 and 
2021/22, is currently being conducted and will be reported to Cabinet in October. 

Page 59

Agenda Item 8



3. Revenue Budget 2021/22 – Forecast Outturn Position as at the end of July 
2021
 

3.1 Members are provided with updates of the Council’s forecast financial revenue 
position each month during the financial year from July. 

3.2 In 2020/21, as in previous years, significant pressures were identified in several 
service areas at an early stage of the year, particularly Children’s Social Care, 
Communities (Children with Disabilities) Education Excellence (Home to School 
Transport) and Locality Services. These pressures, and the unprecedented 
financial challenges faced by the Council in relation to COVID-19, meant the 
Council had to implement a remedial action plan was adopted to ensure a balanced 
budget position would be achieved.  In addition, a number of financial principles 
that had been implemented in previous years were also adopted.

3.3 In response to these pressures, Budget Council approved that additional resources 
be added to the 2021/22 budget for these services, with the amounts shown below:

Service Budget 
Pressure

£m

Children's Social Care – Placements & Packages 7.280
Communities – Children with Disabilities / PSR2 1.050
Education Excellence – Home to School Transport 1.100
Locality Services – Security Force 0.350

9.780

3.4 Initial indications are that the additional resources will be sufficient to ensure that 
there will be no significant impact on the Council’s overall budget in 2021/22.  
However, as these are demand led services this will need to be carefully monitored 
during the year, with the biggest risk being the cost of Children’s Social Care – 
Placements and Packages.  Any pressures arising will need to be managed as it is 
still vital that the Council is able to achieve a balanced forecast outturn position for 
its normal activities, ignoring the impact of COVID-19 pressures.  Therefore, the 
approval of mitigating actions, and the adoption of financial principles used in 
previous years, may need to be implemented at some point during the remainder of 
the year. 

3.5 As at the end of July, the forecast outturn shows an underspend of £0.583m. The 
table below highlights the variations:

Budget Forecast 
Outturn

Variance Variance 
to June 
Position

£m £m £m £m
Services
Strategic Management 3.136 3.098 -0.038 -0.003

Adult Social Care 97.000 97.000 0.000 0.000

Page 60

Agenda Item 8



3.6 The key areas relating to the outturn position are as follows:

 Adult Social Care – The current forecast assumes that the Adult Social Care 
budget will break-even during 2021/22.  However, there are a number of significant 
assumptions and uncertainties as a result of COVID-19 that could impact on this 
position before the year-end.  

As part of the Demand Management Programme, savings of £3.300m were 
identified and delivered during 2020/21.  Work on the Programme is continuing, 
and further savings are being identified that will have a part-year impact in 2021/22 
and will therefore impact on the forecast outturn position.  The current forecast of 
these savings in 2021/22 is £1.416m.  Due to the significant assumptions and 
uncertainties within the forecast outturn position, these savings have not been 
included in the forecast outturn at this time. 

 Children’s Social Care – The current forecast shows a potential overspend of 
£1.124m.  However,  it is estimated that this level of overspend is attributable to the 
impact of COVID-19.  Therefore, as reported to Cabinet in July, these temporary 
costs will be met by the Contain Outbreak Management Fund.

Elsewhere on today’s agenda is a report highlighting the need for additional 
temporary and permanent staffing resources within the service.  The report 
highlights that the anticipated costs in 2021/22 of this additional staffing resource 
are expected to be contained within the £1.500m set aside in an Earmarked 
Reserve for this purpose, as approved at July’s Cabinet meeting.  

The impact of this means that the Children’s Social Care budget is forecast to 
break-even during 2021/22.

Children's Social Care 42.323 42.323 0.000 0.000
Communities 19.873 19.594 -0.279 -0.083
Corporate Resources 9.102 9.039 -0.063 -0.063
Economic Growth & Housing 5.942 5.882 -0.060 -0.075
Education Excellence 11.135 11.092 -0.043 -0.006
Health & Wellbeing 18.703 18.618 -0.085 -0.085
Highways & Public Protection 11.103 11.103 0.000 0.000
Locality Services 12.951 12.817 -0.134 -0.075

Total Service Net 
Expenditure

231.268 230.565 -0.703 -0.423

Budget Pressure Fund 1.000 1.000 0.000 0.000
Council Wide Budgets -13.213 -13.093 0.120 0.000
Levies 34.568 34.568 0.000 0.000
General Government Grants (62.858) (62.858) 0.000 0.000

Total Net Expenditure 190.765 190.182

Forecast Year-End Deficit -0.583 -0.423

Page 61

Agenda Item 8



However, as has been regularly reported over the last three years, the cost of 
Placements and Packages is the largest risk to the Council’s budget position.  The 
Council is currently working on developing a range of options to address the 
inherent demand and costs of Looked After Children whilst supporting the most 
vulnerable residents, but this budget remains under pressure and purely from a 
financial point of view this is likely to continue during this year and into the next 
financial year. 

4. Council Tax Income – Update 
 
4.1 Council Tax income is shared between the billing authority (Sefton Council) and the 

three major precepting authorities (the Fire and Rescue Authority, the Police and 
Crime Commissioner and the Combined Authority – Mayoral Precept) pro-rata to 
their demand on the Collection Fund. The Council’s Budget included a Council Tax 
Requirement of £143.037m for 2021/22 (including Parish Precepts), which 
represents 84.1% of the net Council Tax income of £170.167m. 

4.2 The forecast outturn for the Council at the end of July 2021 is a surplus of -
£1.369m.  However, it should be noted that the Council Tax Base for 2021/22 was 
reduced to reflect lower collection rates and increased Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme claimants.  Therefore, this surplus is forecast in the context of a reduction 
in Council Tax income of £3.564m (see paragraph 2.7).  This variation is primarily 
due to: -

 The deficit on the fund at the end of 2020/21 being lower than estimated (-
£0.421m);

 
 Gross Council Tax Charges in 2021/22 being higher than estimated (-£0.662m); 

 Exemptions and Discounts (including a forecasting adjustment) being higher 
than estimated (-£0.286m).  

4.3 Due to Collection Fund regulations, the Council Tax surplus will not be transferred 
to the General Fund in 2021/22 but will be carried forward to be recovered in future 
years.

4.4 A forecast deficit of £5.179m was declared on the 21 January 2021 of which 
Sefton’s share is £4.355m (84.1%).  This is the amount that will be recovered from 
the Collection Fund in 2021/22, 2022/23 and 2023/24.  Any additional surplus or 
deficit will be distributed in 2022/23 and future years.

5. Business Rates Income – Update 
 
6.1 Since 1 April 2017, Business Rates income has been shared between the Council 

(99%) and the Fire and Rescue Authority (1%). The Council’s Budget included 
retained Business Rates income of £67.919m for 2021/22, which represents 99% of 
the net Business Rates income of £68.606m. Business Rates income has 
historically been very volatile making it difficult to forecast accurately. 

Page 62

Agenda Item 8



6.2 The forecast outturn for the Council at the end of July 2021 is a deficit of                        
£24.297m on Business Rates income. This is due to:

 The deficit on the fund at the end of 2021/22 being higher than estimated 
(+£3.467m); 

 Decrease in the gross charge on rateable properties (+£0.397m);
 A number of additional reliefs were announced after January 2021 to support 

businesses during the COVID-19 pandemic. These include expanded retail 
discount, pub relief, newspaper relief, and private nursery relief. The loss of 
income as a result of these reliefs will be covered by Section 31 grant payments. 
Due to the timing of these announcements the impact of these reliefs could not 
be incorporated into the budget figures reported in the NNDR1 return 
(+£20.433m).

6.3 When taking into account the additional Section 31 grants due on the additional 
reliefs, a net deficit of £3.851m is forecast.  

6.4 Due to Collection Fund regulations, a Business Rates deficit will not be transferred 
to the General Fund in 2021/22 but will be carried forward to be recovered in future 
years.  

6.5 A forecast deficit of £39.206m was declared in January 2021.  Sefton’s share of this 
is £38.814m.  This is the amount that will be distributed from the Collection Fund in 
2021/22, 2022/23 and 2023/24. Any additional surplus or deficit will be distributed in 
future years.

6. Capital Programme 2021/22 – 2023/24

Capital Budget
7.1 The Capital Budget and profile of expenditure for the three years 2021/22 to 

2023/24 is as follows:

7.2 The following updates have been made to the capital programme budget since the 
previous report to Cabinet in July:

 £1.128m has been added for a new externally funded scheme for a sports hub at 
Orrell Mount following approval by Council in July.

 £0.795m had been added for The Strand Business Plan following approval by 
Council in July.

 £0.834m has been added to the 2021/22 budget for the next phase of the 
Regional Coastal Monitoring Programme following approval by Council in July. 
£4.865m has been added to future years’ budgets with allocations to be confirmed 
by the Environment Agency in each year.

 £0.195m has been added to the outgoing Regional Coastal Monitoring 
Programme following approval by Cabinet in July. 

 Revised allocations have been added to the Highways budget for the Key Route 
Network (£0.471m) and Pipeline Development Fund (£0.368m) following approval 
by Cabinet in July.

2021/22 £46.142m
2022/23 £18.279m
2023/24 £7.411m

Page 63

Agenda Item 8



 £2.457m has been phased from 2021/22 to future years for the LED Street 
Lighting Upgrade project due to delays in appointing the project team.

Budget Monitoring Position to July 2021
7.3 The current position of expenditure against the budget profile to the end of July 

2021 is shown in the table below. It should be noted that budgets are profiled 
dependent upon the timing of when works are to be carried out and the anticipated 
spend over the financial year. For example, Education Excellence will typically carry 
out most of its capital works during key school’s holiday periods such as the 
summer recess, whilst Highways and Public Protection will complete most of its 
programmed works during quarters two and four of the financial year. The budget to 
date in the table below reflects the profiles of each individual scheme.

Service Area
Budget to 

Jul-21

Actual 
Expenditure 

to Jul-21
Variance 
to Jul-21

£m £m £m

Adult Social Care 1.139 1.160 0.021
Communities 0.020 - -0.020
Corporate Resources 0.011 0.042 0.031
Economic Growth & Housing 1.807 1.598 -0.209
Education Excellence 1.051 1.114 0.063
Highways & Public Protection 1.563 1.562 -0.001
Operational In-House Services 3.741 3.840 0.099

Total Programme 9.332 9.316 -0.016

Capital Programme Forecast Outturn 2021/22
7.4 The current forecast of expenditure against the budget profile to the end of 2021/22 

and the profile of budgets for future years is shown in the table below:

Service Area

Full Year 
Budget 
2021/22

Forecast 
Out-turn

Variance 
to 

Budget

Full Year 
Budget 
2022/23

Full Year 
Budget 
2023/24

£m £m £m £m £m

Adult Social Care 4.647 4.058 -0.589 3.039 0.764

Children’s Social Care 0.100 0.100 - - -

Communities 2.865 2.877 0.012 0.279 -

Corporate Resources 5.383 5.383 - 0.404 -

Economic Growth & Housing 7.121 7.121 - 1.063 0.040

Education Excellence 5.160 5.072 -0.088 4.628 1.831

Highways & Public Protection 11.213 11.213 - 3.742 3.605
Operational In-House 
Services 9.653 9.651 -0.002 5.124 1.171

Total Programme 46.142 45.475 -0.667 18.279 7.411
A full list of the capital programme by capital scheme is at appendix A.

Page 64

Agenda Item 8



7.5 The current 2021/22 budgeted spend is £46.142m with a budgeted spend to July of 
£9.332m. The full year budget includes exceptional items such as £6.4m for vehicle 
replacement, £1.9m for Green Homes Local Delivery, previously approved amounts 
for essential repairs and maintenance (£3.924m), a scheme to upgrade to LED 
Street Lighting (£0.815m), and leisure schemes for a new sports hub and 
improvements to an existing football pitch (£1.378m).

7.6 Typically, on an annual basis the capital programme spends in the region of £20m. 
Given this typical annual level of spend it is likely that reprofiling of spend into 
2022/23 will occur as the year progresses.

7.7 An underspend of £0.589m is forecast on Adult Social Care. This is largely due to a 
lower estimate for Disabled Facilities Grants for 2021/22. A target of £1.474m has 
been set for the year based on improved performance over the previous year’s 
target (£0.975m) when adaptations could not be progressed or were delayed due to 
Covid-19. Current delivery however, is being impacted by vacancies in the Home 
Improvements and Occupational Therapy teams. It is anticipated that spend may 
increase once recruitment has been completed and revised estimates will be 
reported on future budget updates.

Southport Town Deal 

7.8 In the Government’s budget statement, published on 3 March 2021 it was 
confirmed that Southport was offered a Town Deal up to the value of £37.5 million. 
Subsequently on the 1 April Cabinet agreed to the non-binding heads of terms 
outlining the proposed spend and projects. Following this Cabinet further approved 
to progress with Option 5 for the new Marine Lake Events Centre (MLEC) that is 
the anchor project of The Southport Town Deal.

7.9 The Council have recently been informed that it can draw down 5% of the £37.5 
million in advance of March next year to assist in the preparation of business case 
development. The £1.875m will be used to develop the Town Deal projects 
consisting of the MLEC, Enterprise Arcade and Les Transformations de Southport 
(public realm). Further to this the Council have been invited by the Liverpool City 
Region Combined Authority to submit a pre development bid up to £2.5m for the 
MLEC as also approved by Cabinet on 29 July 2021 . This will mean the Council 
could spend up to £4.375m on predevelopment activities in order to submit the 
required Town Deal information to Government by March 2022. 

7.10 Cabinet is asked to recommend to Council that Supplementary Capital Estimates 
be approved for £1.875m and up to £2.500m for the work outlined above.

Page 65

Agenda Item 8



Programme Funding
7.11 The table below shows how the capital programme will be funding in 2021/22:

Source £m
Grants 29.852
Contributions (incl. Section 106) 1.065
Capital Receipts 5.688
Prudential Borrowing 9.537
Total Programme Funding 46.142

7.12 The programme is reviewed on an ongoing basis to confirm the capital resources 
required to finance capital expenditure are in place, the future years programme is 
fully funded, and the level of prudential borrowing remains affordable.

7.13 The Executive Director Corporate Resources and Customer Services will continue 
to manage the financing of the programme to ensure the final capital funding 
arrangements secure the maximum financial benefit to the Council.

Page 66

Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX A – Capital Programme 2021/22 to 2023/24

Budget
2021/22 2022/23 2023/24Capital Project

£ £ £
Adult Social Care    
Care Homes - Fire Alarms & Emergency Lighting        98,310  -  - 
Core DFG Programme     1,473,566 572,370   - 
Wider Social Care Programme     3,075,089     2,466,532 763,750 
Children’s Social Care
Support for Fostering Placements 100,000 - -
Communities    
Dunes Splashworld – Essential Repairs 1,388,874 - -
Litherland Sports Park – 3G Pitch & Lighting 250,000 - -
Orrell Mount Sports Hub 1,128,047 - -
Libraries - Centres of Excellence          20,000        279,301  - 
S106 - Netherton & Orrell – Abbeyfield Park          11,942  -  - 
S106 - Linacre - Strand Living Wall          10,665  -  - 
S106 - Sudell – Moorhey Shops Parking Scheme 16,625 - -
S106 - Ford – Stanton Avenue One Way System 9,000 - -
S106 - Litherland – Play Equip Orrell Mount Pavilion 30,000 - -
Corporate Resources    
Council Wide Essential Maintenance 2,308,330 - -
STCC Essential Maintenance         87,680 -  - 
Victoria Baths Essential Works        138,974  -  - 
Bootle & Southport Town Hall Retrofit Energy Saving        788,087  -  - 
Green Homes Grant Local Delivery Scheme 1,900,000 - -
Public Sector Reform        160,000 404,337  - 
Economic Growth & Housing    
Strategic Acquisitions - Bootle 434,473 - -
The Strand Business Plan – Mtce and Improvement 640,000 115,000 40,000
Cambridge Road Centre Development 795,123 - -
Crosby Lakeside Development 2,791,997 - -
Town Centre Commission Bootle 150,000 -          - 
Southport Market Redevelopment        813,938  20,039  - 
Strategic Acquisitions - Ainsdale 299,500  891,859  - 
Housing Investment        15,188 36,180  - 
Brownfield Fund for Housing Development     1,050,000    -  - 
Southport Pier Project  130,886     -  - 
Education Excellence    
Healthy Pupils Fund          1,486  -  - 
Schools Programme 3,813,856 2,756,034 1,830,682
Planned Maintenance 482,364 859,043 -
Special Educational Needs & Disabilities 862,518 1,012,374 -
Highways and Public Protection  
Transport Schemes 10,398,001 - -
LED Street Lighting Upgrade 815,000 3,742,035 3,605,580

Page 67

Agenda Item 8



2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
Operational In-House Services    
Burials & Cremation Insourcing - Vehicles & Equip        90,663  -  - 
Formby Strategic Flood Risk Management Prog - 43,851 -
Merseyside Groundwater Study          31,508  -  - 
Regional Coastal Monitoring Programme 2016-2021        391,654 -        - 
Regional Coastal Monitoring Programme 2022-2026 834,000 735,000 1,058,000
The Pool & Nile Watercourses         124,121  -  - 
Crosby Flood & Coastal Scheme        34,641  785,839      - 
Hall Road & Alt Training Bank - Rock Armour -          45,775  - 
Ainsdale & Birkdale Land Drainage Scheme          25,973  -  - 
Surface Water Management Plan        18,000  81,445  - 
Surface Water Modelling & Mapping          13,601  -  - 
Small Watercourse Works 7,638 - -
Water Level Monitoring Pilot 13,000 5,000 -
Parks Schemes        139,687         154,700  - 
Hesketh Park Conservatory 20,407 - -
Tree Planting Programme          68,747 126,783            - 
Golf Driving Range Developments        398,822        280,280  - 
Ainsdale Coastal Gateway 351,538 - -
Crosby Marine Lake Improvements – Phase 1 155,000 - -
Litter Bin Infrastructure 22,358 - -
Green Sefton – Plant & Machinery 131,152 - -
Vehicle Replacement Programme 6,359,737 1,635,493 113,000
Wheeled Bins 420,000 1,230,000 -

TOTAL PROGRAMME 46,141,766 18,279,270 7,411,012

Page 68

Agenda Item 8


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Appointment to Liverpool University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust University Hospital Council of Governors
	5 Living Well Sefton Service Contract Extension
	6 Procurement of Sefton Integrated Homeless Services
	7 Children’s Social Care Workforce Review
	8 Financial Management 2021/22 to 2024/25 and Framework for Change 2020 - Revenue and Capital Budget Update 2021/22 including the Financial Impact of COVID-19 on the 2021/22 Budget - September Update

